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Highlights of the Year 2012
2012 FE KRS
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January

e The Group duly commenced
the project under 2012 National
Science and Technology Major
Project, which was a 2G, 3G and
4G TD-LTE multimode smartphone
project targeting business sector

March

e Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, a
subsidiary of the Group, obtained
the ISO/TS16949 Automotive
Quality Management Certificate

April

e lLeveraging on Qualcomm’s
advanced technology platform,
the Group developed A780, one of
the hottest handsets sold by China
Unicom, and commenced mass
production in only 3 months time,
with accumulated delivery volume
of more than 500,000 units

June

e The Group started to deliver FDD/
TDD LTE based multimode smart
devices to customers in America

July

e The Group started to deliver large-
screen smartphones developed and
produced for a leading international
computer manufacturer

August

e The second phase of our
production base in Qingpu,
Shanghai has completed, which
occupied a site area of more than
30,000m?. The Group's delivery
function and handset production
department have been relocated to
the new production base
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September

e The Group’s “Internet of Things”
smart community in Shenyang
launched for sale, which
marked the Group’s attempt to
diversify from pure IT business
by integrating IT and traditional
industry together

October

e Simcom, a subsidiary of the Group,
was awarded the “2012 Top 100
Innovative SMEs of China”

November

e Simcom, a subsidiary of the
Group, was accredited the “2011-
2012 Key Software Enterprises
Included in the National Plan”
for eight consecutive years by
National Development and Reform
Commission, Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology,
Ministry of Finance, Ministry
of Commerce and the State
Administration of Taxation

December

e Simcom, a subsidiary of the
Group, was awarded the “Top
100 Shanghai Private Technology
Conglomerates” by Science
and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Municipality and
Shanghai Private Technology
Enterprise Association (_E/&R&
R EBa®)
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Chairman’s Statement E£ERE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reported turnover
of HK$2,925.3 million (2011: HK$3,334.1 million). Gross profit margin
rose to 9.6% (2011: 8.1%). Affected by an impairment on goodwill
arising from the acquisition of Smartwireless Technology Limited in
2009 and intangible assets (including capitalised development costs of
those previous projects which is expected not to bring in future revenue
to the Group), while the benefits of its business transformation was not

yet reflected during the year, the Group recorded loss attributable to
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shareholders at HK$96.7 million (2011: loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$25.5 million). Basic loss per share was HK4.8 cents (2011: basic

loss per share of HK1.4 cents (restated)).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Chairman's Statement EFBHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the past year, clouded by the European debt crisis, the global economy
has recovered slowly while different industries have continued to face stiff
challenges. With regard to the handset industry, there was increasingly
intense competition as several handset giants generated a majority of
the profits while many other branded handset providers found it difficult
to make any. The Group’s branded handset customers also greatly
lowered their procurement prices and some even left the market. Under
such a tough business environment and after careful contemplation,
the Group decided to transform its business immediately. Consequently,
the Group withdrew from the highly competitive operator procurement
market while continuing to operate in the high-end handset business,
and directed resources toward developing smart phones and tablets for
the industries such as medical and logistic industries. With the Group
leaving the unprofitable business segment and increasing its proportion
in the high-margin business, an improvement in business performance
was achieved in the second half of 2012. In particular, gross profit margin
rose gradually. As for the wireless communication module business, a
decrease in turnover was recorded, as the Group determined to optimize
the product mix and thus stopped working on low-end product projects
which carry lower profit margin. This has nonetheless boosted the gross
profit margin of the wireless communication module business during the

year under review.

Handsets and solutions

During the year under review, the global handset market experienced
intensive price competition. Nevertheless, the Group’s major branded
handset customers in the PRC did report higher number of shipments
and captured larger market share year-on-year. However, a price war led
to even lower profitability for the entire industry when compared to last
year and the lower procurement price has resulted in the unprofitable
ODM handset business. Japanese handset brands were also severely hit
by foreign competitors, leading to a drastic decline in domestic market
share. As a result, the Group’s Japanese customers substantially cut their
procurement prices and reduced the number of new handset projects,
while some even left the handset market. This exerted pressure on the

Group’s handset business far beyond expectations.
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To improve the profitability of the handset business, the Group adjusted
the business direction in the second half year of 2012. It cancelled a
number of high volume yet unprofitable projects and turned the focus to
high-end ODM projects that can generate reasonable returns, particularly
ODM projects for the European and US markets and 4G LTE projects. The
Group also strived to develop differentiated handset products, particularly
for special handset products such as those used by the medical and
logistics industries characterised with small orders, product varieties and
reasonable gross profit margins. Such adjustment enabled the Group to
tap high-quality sustainable business opportunities. Recently, the Group
has forged close partnerships with professional application customers,
which are expected to lead to a new growth driver for the Group’s long-

term development.

During the year under review, sales from the handset business declined
to HK$2,091.1 million (2011: HK$2,608.1million). Gross profit margin
increased to 6.5% (2011: 5.5%) and gross profit was HK$135.7 million
(2011: HK$143.0 million).

Wireless communication modules

In 2012, the PRC market was adversely impacted by the keen
competition and selling price reduction. Nevertheless, the Group was able
to work in close collaboration with key overseas and domestic operators
to further expand its business. During the year, the revenue generated
from the overseas market surged by over 20% as compared to last year.
In particular, North America and Japan markets have shown their growing
demand in 3G and 4G products. It is worth noting that the value for money
SIM5320(3G) family of wireless communication modules was endorsed
by major operators in North America, whereas SIM5320JE modules
under the same family have obtained the network certification from
Softbank Mobile Corp. in Japan. Moreover, SIM7290, the Group's first
4G-LTE modules that launched in the fourth quarter of 2012, received
overwhelming market responses recently. In addition, the SIM900(2G)
family of wireless communication modules continued to enjoy an
important position in the M2M industry especially in the international
market. Besides, the SIM800, family of wireless communication modules

utilizing the MTK platform also gained popularity in the PRC market for
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Chairman's Statement EFBHRE

its low-cost and wide-application advantages. The Group determined
to optimize its product portfolio and terminate low-end and low-margin
projects to boost the gross profit of its wireless communication modules

business.

During the year under review, the Group’s wireless communication
modules business recorded sales and gross profit of HK$490 million and
HK$100.2 million respectively (2011: HK$593.6 million and HK$114.5
million respectively). Gross profit margin slightly increased to 20.5%
(2011: 19.3%).

Display modules

Driven by the rapid growth in demand for smart phones and tablets,
total demand for LCD modules(LCM) and capacity touch panels (CTPs)
increased accordingly. In 2012, the Group made timely adjustments
to its display module business mix and restructured its management
teams and changed the ways of management, including reducing the
scale of the LCM business due to its lower profitability; expanding the
CTP business; and directing more resources to enhancing product
technologies and sales. These measures have borne fruit within a short
period of time. The CTP business has achieved a rapid revenue growth
during the year under review. The sales proportion of CTP business in
the total display module business revenue increased significantly from
19% in year 2011 to 87% in year 2012. The performance of this business
segment in the second half of 2012 was in line with expectations.

Benefitting from effective business strategies, revenue from the display
module business grew noticeably during the year under review, up by
54.2% year-on-year to HK$204.1 million (2011: HK$132.4 million) even
after excluding the inter-segment sales to the “handsets and solutions”
segment. Gross profit doubled to HK$24.3 million (2011: HK$11.4
million) while gross profit margin increased by about three percentage
points to 11.9% (2011: 8.6%). If the contributions from the inter-
segment sales were not excluded, this segment would have achieved a

turnaround.
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Shenyang real estate project

A subsidiary of the Group, R E % (&%) BR 2 A (unofficial English
translation as Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited) which is owned by
the Company as to 60% of its equity interest, holds a parcel of land in
Shenyang City (“Land”). The Land is situated at Daoyi Development
Zone, No. 25, north to Shenbei Development Avenue, Shenbei New
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with a site area of
approximately 85,000 square meters. The area available for development
is approximately of 173,000 square meters, of which the ground floor
area is approximately 158,000 square meters and the plot ratio is 1.86.
Our intention is to develop the Land into commercial and residential

apartment complex, named The Riverside Country (Ea#k/KER) .

Phase | of The Riverside Country was completed and put on market for
sale in year 2012. A total of 404 residential units were put on market for
sale. 310 units were sold in year 2012 and out of which 234 units were
delivered. The sales recognized in year 2012 amounted to HK$140.1
million (2011: Nil) and the gross profit margin was 15.6%.

In 2013, the Group will continue proceeding with the development of
the commercial buildings which is expected to be completed in the third
quarter of 2013 and phase Il of The Riverside Country which is expected
to be completed in phases from 2014 and planned to develop it into an

intelligent residential community.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to adhere to the “high value-
added” philosophy and strive to develop a high-end and new technology
business portfolio. It will enhance the R&D capability to develop software
and system applications based on market demand, as well as provide
comprehensive solutions for its customers. The Group will also push
ahead with its transformation from being an ODM provider in the
manufacturing business to become a modern service provider, offering
one-stop services to customers, thus allowing it to enhance profitability as

well as better capitalise on economies of scale.
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Chairman's Statement EFBHRE

With regard to the handset business, the trends of gross profit erosion,
enhanced brand awareness and diverse applications have transformed
handsets from simple tools for communications to essential tools for
business purpose, offering a variety of applications for various industries
such as retail, logistics and express delivery. The different requirements
placed on software, hardware and accessories from different industries
and professions will present to handset developers greater room for
development. Moreover, the rapidly increasing market demand for tablets
will facilitate the growth of the handset market. The joint development
of both products has blurred the line between handsets and traditional
computers, and offers more development opportunities for related
products. With this in mind, the Group will cut the scale of certain ODM
projects that may generate large orders but low profits while retaining
its high-end ODM business which targets the international market. The
Group will also direct resources towards developing the 4G LTE business,
including specialized mobile terminals and systems, as well as gradually
transforming from a mobile product supplier to a mobile smart service

provider targeting industries and professional applications.

In addition, the Group will expand its investment in the new-generation
wireless communication modules. Communication module products and
related “Internet of Things” applications will continue to represent growth
opportunities for the Group due to further development of the Internet
of Things project. The Group’s R&D team and cooperative partners will
strengthen the global technologies support to international customers, to
meet their diverse needs and to tailor one-stop solutions for them. Such
services will help accelerate the product approval process and shorten the
lead time of products. Leveraging innovative technologies, professional
R&D standards and over a decade’s worth of experience, the Group will
expand its product applications in areas such as smart metering, security
and safety, remote healthcare and wellbeing services, aiming to transform
itself from a traditional M2M communication module supplier to a M2M

integrated solution supplier and operation service provider. The Group
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also plans to develop the “Internet of Things” smart community project.
This will help bring new growth drivers to the Group as a result of the
vertical integration of its business, in turn helping enhance its competitive

advantages and maintaining a lead position in the industry.

The CTP business is still expected to possess significant room for
development. The Group will continue to expand this area of business
and plans to further increase production efficiency. By integrating the
production lines of the Shenyang and Shanghai plants, the Group targets
to raise production capacity and efficiency by over 20%. Also, the Group
will increase investment in the R&D of one glass solution (OGS) product
technology and CTPs for tablets. What is more, it will seek to improve
technologies, raise production capacity and expand its customer base in

the coming year to achieve higher business growth.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying
Chairman
Hong Kong

21 March 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 E 5158 & DT
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the revenue from sale of
handsets and solutions, wireless communication modules and display
modules (“core business”) for the year 2012 decreased by 16.5% to
HK$2,785.2 million (2011: HK$3,334.1 million). This was attributable
to the decreases in the revenue of handsets and wireless modules. The

revenue from sale of residential units in Shenyang, PRC amounted to
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SMART Phone SMART Application for
3G&4G Phones
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis SR ETH R DT

HK$140.1 million (2011: Nil). The total revenue of the Group for the year
2012, included revenue of core business and properties development,
amounted to HK$2,925.3 million (2011: HK$3,334.1 million).

The gross profit for core business of the Group for the year 2012
decreased by 3.2% year-on-year to HK$260.2 million (2011: HK$268.9
million). The gross profit margin for core business increased to 9.3%
(2011: 8.1%). The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the year
2012 was 9.6% (2011: 8.1%).

The Group incurred a loss of HK$96.7 million (2011: HK$25.5 million)
in 2012. The significant loss incurred was mainly due to the recognition
of impairment of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary
in year 2009, together with the impairment of the intangible assets. The
basic loss per share for the year 2012 was HK4.8 cents (2011: HK1.4

cents (restated)).
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Management's Discussion and Analysis EIEEBETHR DT

Research and development expenses

In 2012, the Group continued to expand its investment in the most
advanced technology including 4G/LTE, and development of high end
smart phones and tablets. The number of design and development team
members was 1,020 (2011: 1,084) in 2012. The R&D expenses, which
amounted to HK$184.4 million (2011: HK$183.6 million), represented
about 6.3% (2011: 5.5%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for year 2012 decreased
by 7.8% to HK$114.7 million (2011: HK$124.5 million). The ratio of
the selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2012 was 3.9% (2011:
3.7%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2012 decreased by 4% to
HK$94.8 million (2011: HK$98.8 million), representing 3.2% (2011:
3.0%) of the revenue. The Group focused on putting stringent control
over the administrative expenses during the reporting period and moved

portion of the back-up service team to Shanghai Qingpu factory.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis EEEFTHR DT

Segment results of core business AR 30k E S
Year ended 31 December 2012 Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-“f+-fB=1+-HLEE BE_ZT——F+-A=T—HILEE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
[/ON E7 EFI= WA EF EME
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
HEBT HEBR % BEAT BBEATL %
Handsets and solutions FHEBARAFR 2,091.1 135.7 6.5% 2,608.1 143.0 5.5%
Wireless communication ELFBIER
modules 490.0 100.2 20.5% 593.6 1145 19.3%
Display modules FRESR 204.1 24.3 11.9% 132.4 114 8.6%
Total FEE 2,785.2 260.2 9.3% 3,334.1 2689 8.1%
Handsets and solutions FHRERBRAATR

Under the severe price competition in the handsets market, the FHRMIZBESRFEI FEREBRA
revenue for handsets and solutions decreased year-on-year by 19.8% EHRARF T KIO8RE — T — =
to HK$2,091.1 million (2011: HK$2,608.1 million) in year 2012. The F #2,091,100,000/% Tt( = & — — F:
Group adjusted the business strategy in the second half of 2012, exited 2,608,100,000%7T) - AEEFAE T ——4F
from the unprofitable projects with bulk shipment, and concentrated on THEFNEBERE - B ESXEEFTE
the development of high-end ODM projects that can generate reasonable KFIEE @ EXFHELERAEN=WODMIER -

returns. As a result, the gross profit margin for this segment increased to Al Zo S EFRENE T —Z_FH
6.5% (2011: 5.5%) in 2012. 6.5%(ZF——%F :55%) °
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Management's Discussion and Analysis EIEEBETHR DT

Wireless communication modules EABMER

In 2012, the revenue for wireless communication modules decreased by RIZE——F BEHEBENEROEAR-F
17.5% as compared to that of year 2011, while the gross profit margin ——F WA 17.5% - A D FEAEF = BI6R
for this segment increased slightly to 20.5% (2011: 19.3%). During the FHZE205% (=ZZF——4 1 19.3%) - RIEH
reporting period, the Group determined to cease the low-end and low- H - AREBRERILEEERERNENEE -
margin projects so as to optimize the product mix, as a result, the revenue EABERMES - AR NE - mEMNE
decreased and the gross profit margin continued to improve. BISENE -

Display modules BRER

The revenue of display modules in year 2012 increased significantly R-IE——F  BERAERORAR T ——F
by 54.2% as compared with that in year 2011. The gross profit margin K@ EF54.2%  EFEERELLIIN(=ZF

increased to 11.9% (2011: 8.6%) as the proportion of the sale of CTP ——F : 86%) ' WL TIEREFEEZHCTP
modules, with higher gross profit margin, increased significantly from B ER T ——FM19% AIEgINE=
19% (year 2011) to 87% in year 2012. T—ZFM8TI% °
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis EEEFTHR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
At 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances of HK$538.7 million

(2011: HK$500.8 million), net of the cash to be refunded to shareholders
on oversubscription of Rights Issue and excluding pledged bank deposits
(in Renminbi and US dollars) for the purpose of US dollars borrowings,
among which 57.9% was held in Renminbi, 10.4% was held in US dollars
and the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
had net bank balances (total bank balances less bank borrowings and the
cash to be refunded to shareholders on oversubscription of Rights Issue)
of HK$522.9 million (2011: HK$161.2 million). The Group intends to
finance its working capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank

balances.

On 4 January 2013, the Company issued 852,499,500 rights shares at
HK$0.20 per rights share and raised net proceeds after deducting the

relevant expenses of approximately HK$167 million.

RBEE  MBERRERNSE

RZE——F+-A=+—8 HBEHRERK
HEREEDNRR 2ReE  AEBEMRT
HEHR(TEEREBEAETEEMEFNARE
K EITIR1T1F7K) £538,700,00058 L ( —F
— — 4 : 500,800,000/ 7t ) + E F57.9% A
ARERE  104% AFETHER - HARIE
TR o REEMMRITFRFE (BRITER
FARTTIE R MBI D Mg RER
B4 ) /522,900,000 7T ( —F——4 :
161,200,000/ 7T) ° ANEEFIAZ R T
BNAEENEEES RENRIEIFTER

R-F—=F—A0A  KARFASEMEK
170.207% JT O {8 1& 3 17 852,499,500 A% £t X
Betn - MERARBF X 1R BB B TR FELD
167,000,000 ¢
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis EEEFIHR DT

The turnover period of inventory, trade receivables, notes receivables and

trade payables of the Group are presented below:

Inventory turnover period FEiREE

Trade receivables period JEUNE SRR
Notes receivables period U 5 A 8 A
Trade payables period JERTE 5 AR A A

FEEZFE  BREZERER  BUREERKE
NESERNBEHRZ25/0T

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
Days Days

X PN

64 63

31 12

46 41

101 88

The increase in the turnover period of trade receivables was because the
Group granted longer credit terms since June of 2012 upon the request of
some renowned customers, resulted in the increase in trade receivables.
In the fourth quarter of 2011, the purchase volume of the Group was large
which resulted in a larger trade payables balance at the beginning of this
year, whereas the purchase amount in 2012 was comparatively smaller,
as a result, the trade payables turnover period increased significantly.

As at 31 December 2012, the current ratio, calculated as current assets
over current liabilities, was 1.9 times (2011: 1.5 times).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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Management's Discussion and Analysis EERE SRR DT

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are held under fixed and savings deposits in reputable
banks to earn interest income. During the year under review, the Group
did not have any other security or capital investments or derivative
investments.

Other than entering into non-deliverable foreign exchange forward
contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures in US dollars
denominated bank borrowings, the management of the Group considered
that it was not necessary to use any other financial instrument for hedging
purpose or adopt any particular hedging policy.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 1,704,999,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

BB BUR
AEBRANRTOEBREK - XEENABE
STEERREBREBRITIERERENR - #IAR
HBABHA - REBEFER - NEE W EERA
HMBE LS RERNRESINTETARE -

BREER] IR EEMINES W A ZITAHER
RITERENIINERRS  AREERER RS
FEREAE M E T EELS TR RIIRAE
A FE SR ©

R-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H ARAAH
1,704,999,000 B #AE E(E 0.108 L 2 B 217
LAY o
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Management's Discussion and Analysis EIEEBETHR DT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS RERERBE
2012 2011
—E—C-F —T——%F
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEET BEET
Net cash from (used in) operating activities  RB (AR) 8E FH 2 RS FHE 412.7 (41.1)
Capital expenditure =N (84.6) (333.3)
Development costs EREID N (164.8) (180.7)
Net decrease in bank borrowings RITEERF5E (462.0) (147.4)
Issue of shares BITRG - 230.0
Net proceeds received upon Rights Issue RIS ER 2 P 1S I8 558 166.9
Repurchase of shares 8 B 1 - (18.6)
Dividend paid BERE - (68.8)
Others HA 32.8 81.3
Net decrease in cash and cash e MR FEBEERMIFE
equivalents (exclude the cash to be (T BIEE B RIE AR 5
refunded to shareholders on MAHRERR 2IRE)
oversubscription of Rights Issue) (99.0) (478.6)

The Group’s net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year 2012
was primarily attributable to the cash inflow from operating activities
together with the proceeds received upon Rights Issue, and have been

offset by the capital expenditures and repayment of bank borrowings.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2012, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$3,463.3 million (2011: HK$3,841.5 million) and the bank borrowings
was HK$50.8 million (2011: HK$511.5 million). The gearing ratio of the
Group, calculated as total bank borrowings over total assets, was 1.5%
(2011: 13.3%).

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 3,200 (2011:

4,979) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$415.5 million (2011: HK$460.4 million)
during the year 2012.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the sales of the Group are denominated in Renminbi and most
of the purchases of inventories are denominated in US dollars. With
the introduction of a more elastic exchange rate regime for Renminbi,
the Renminbi exchange rate movements might become more volatile,
creating an uncertainty effect on the Group’s business. Furthermore,
certain trade receivables, trade payables and bank balances are
denominated in US dollars, therefore exposing the Group to US dollars
currency risk. The Group entered into non-deliverable foreign exchange
forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures in USD
denominated bank borrowings. Other than that, the Group does not have
any foreign currency hedging policy but will continue to monitor any
further changes in Renminbi’s exchange rate and would proactively take
measures to minimise any adverse impact that fluctuations of exchange

rates might have on the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

BEEST R RO
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AL (ZF——% :511,500,000 ) - A%
Bz ABLE(RRTEELBERNEERE
AE)R15%(ZF——% :133%) °

==t
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Development Concept of SIM Technology SR N ERR

LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target: to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication end product solutions and services. All employees of the

Group are fully confident in, and are striving for achieving the target.

CUSTOMER ORIENTED WITH CONTINUED
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and
continue to satisfy customer needs, through continuous innovation in

technology and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “Making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our

continuous efforts.
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Care for our Future BIEIRFIBIFRIK

£im 2 iy

w‘ . ﬁa “L

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up

our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

Sunrise People should not only be satisfied with material wealth but
should also enrich ourselves spiritually. | wish that more Sunrise people
can share our charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better

and more harmonious future together.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organization establishes and funds by the employees of the Group for

charity purpose.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started

from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile EERSREEAS

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), aged 68, is the chairman
and an executive director of the Company (“Director”) and
a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited (“SEIL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mrs Wong is
responsible for developing direction and strategies of the
Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho
Tung (“Mr Wong”), an executive Director, was the founder
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong
had established a number of companies which engaged in
the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”),
one of the Group’s main operating subsidiary which was
established in November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of
operational and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics, specialising in electrical
engineering. Besides being the spouse of Mr Wong, Mrs Wong
is the mother of Mr Wong Hei, Simon, the president and an
executive Director of the Company (resigned on 21 January
2013).

Mr Wong Hei, Simon, aged 40, the president and an executive
Director of the Company, is responsible for developing direction,
strategies and new business development planning of the Group.
He is a son of Mr Wong and Mrs Wong, each an executive
Director. Mr Wong Hei, Simon has over 10 years of experience
in the electronics and telecommunications industry and
extensive experience in investment and business management.
Mr Wong Hei, Simon worked at the headquarters of National
Semiconductor in the Silicon Valley in 1995. He joined the
Group in February 2000. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
science from Boston University in 1995, specializing in electrical
engineering. Mr Wong Hei, Simon resigned as the president and
executive Director of the Company on 21 January 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile EERSREBAS

éi; _ 2 8

Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”), aged 68, is an executive
Director. Mr Wong is responsible for the Group’s developing
direction, strategies, corporate planning and macro corporate
management. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM
Technology Limited, a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and
SIM Technology HK Limited, each a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty
Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr
Wong together with his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director,
was the founder of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968
from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
specializing in electrical engineering. Mr Wong has decades of
experience in the electrical, electronics and telecommunications
industry.

Mr Zhang Jianping (“Mr Zhang”), aged 47, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is
responsible for the overall management of the Group’s product
and business planning, including management of product
definition, sales, procurement, production and delivery. He is
also a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, Shanghai Simcom
Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) and Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited, each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr Zhang joined Shanghai Sunrise Simcom in 1996 and was
responsible for the establishment of Shanghai Simcom in 2002.
Mr Zhang has over 26 years of technology and management
experience in the electronics and telecommunication industry.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr Zhang was engaged in research
with No. 14 Research Institute of the Ministry of Electronics
Industry in China. Mr Zhang has also been awarded a third class
award for national technological improvements by the State in
1990 and the first and second class awards for technological
improvements by the Ministry of Electronics in 1989 and 1992
respectively. In 2004, he was named as /&8 H R T A
7 (“Shanghai Outstanding Technology Calibre”) by the Shanghai
Municipal Government. Mr Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree
in engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1986 and
a master’s degree in business administration from China Europe
International Business School in 2002.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012

FHREE(E%RAE]) 6857 $WiTES - £4&
EEBE2EBEAEEFERAM - K - RBIUR
TERBER - TEEREANK(LEE)BRA
AIEF - DEREFHBREAREESERAT
(EAERARZEMBAR) ZES - TEED
BN AL Info Dynasty Group Limited 2 &
FoFTEERARBIAKN WTEE - BAATH
ZBINE o FERAR—NAANFRERILRMZEM
RRE - FEEWTIREE - TRERER  EF
REAXEBEELELR -

RBIFEE([REE]D) - 4758 TESRAEE
BEWNTE  AREEASEERREERE 2
HERASECRERTEREE  JIHE 45
RRHEFEER - A DEREFIE - B8R
R (E8)BRAR( LEFEE]) REM
B () ERAB (LM ARARZENB R
AZESE REER—ANSNFMALSRESR
BiE YEER ST _FRY HEFBRE - RE
ERETRENEFEEB 26 FRMEERERS - 1
MBAAREER - REENPEEFTEDE - HUH
TR EMRELIE - REETR—NANTFERR
B BERERE®ES SRR FR - \NER
—NNZFREFTEIBERBES —FRR =
S8 NZETNE - HELLSTRAFBELR L
EMEFEERMAL | o SRAEER— N/ \NFHE
FERXBARBIRBELEBN YR _TT_F4
PR TEEEERETEEERB TS0 -



Directors and Senior Management Profile EERSHREERBAS

Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 59, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
(located in Shanghai, China) of the Group and a director of
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited, each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Ms
Tang has nearly 20 years of experience in human resources
management, administration and corporate operation. Prior to
joining the Group in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of ;T 84 &%
INTIEE— AR EEBT (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and
the head of technology and deputy chief physician of B &zt
|4 A 35EFT (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then,
Ms Tang has served as the manager and deputy general manager
of the personnel and administration department of Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom. Ms Tang graduated from #5522 HRIE4;
(Gannan Medical College) in 1978.

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 56, is an
executive Director and the chief finance officer of the Group.
Mr Chan was qualified as a certified general accountant (CGA)
in Canada in 1988. He is a member of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Mr Chan has more than
15 years of financial management experience and has worked
as, amongst other positions, the chief finance officer of E-Mice
Solutions (HK) Limited and Chinatron Group Holdings Limited,
the financial controller of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited and the finance director of EMI (Hong Kong)
Ltd and had also held a financial management position in
Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in arts from York University, Canada in
1979 and a bachelor's degree in administrative studies with
honours from the same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM
Technology (HK) Limited in July 2004.

Mr Liu Hong (“Mr Liu"), aged 48, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Group’s business operation
headquarter (located in Shanghai, China). He is responsible for
overseeing the product quality and product delivery processes
of the Group. Mr Liu obtained a Bachelor degree of Engineering
specialised in electronic engineering at Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (_E/8328AE) in July 1986. He also obtained a
Master degree of Engineering specialised in communications and
electronic systems at ShanghaiTech University (_E/8EHEKE)
in December 1988 and a PhD degree of Engineering specialised
in electric field and microwave technology at Shanghai University
(E/8RE) in July 1999. Mr Liu had worked as a vice general
manager in _E/8ELLSFEZEABR AT (unofficial English
translation being Shanghai DBTEL Industry Company Limited)
from 2000 to 2006 and a vice general manager in L/§ER{Z
BRITBR AT (unofficial English translation being Shanghai
Hui Zhong Information Technology Company Limited) from 2006
to 2007. Mr Liu joined the Group in 2007, and appointed as an
executive Director on 1 March 2013.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr Liu"), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
(appointed on 10 April 2012). Mr Liu is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr Liu now runs
a professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
ten years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance. Mr Liu is currently an independent non-
executive director of Emperor International Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Liu was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
September 2008.

Mr Xie Linzhen (“Mr Xie"), aged 72, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated in 1963 from the
Peking University of Physics and is a Professor of Electronics
Department of Peking University. Mr Xie has acted as the deputy
director of the Telecommunication System and Equipment
Department in the Ministry of Electronics Industry, the PRC, the
deputy director of the IT Product Department in the Ministry of
Information Industry, PRC (“MII") and the standing member of
Communication Science and Technology Committee of Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, PRC (“ MIIT"). Mr Xie
is currently the vice president of China Mobile Communication
Association, the chairman of China Domestic Handset Summit
and the member of Electronic Science and Technology
Committee of MIIT and the executive director and chief scientist
of CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co, Ltd. Mr Xie is also
an independent director and audit committee member of
UTStarcom, Inc., the securities of which are listed on NASDAQ of
the United States of America. Mr Xie was an independent director
of Funtalk China Holdings Limited, the securities of which are
listed on NASDAQ of the United States of America (privatized
in August 2011). Mr Xie was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in January 2009.

Mr Dong Yunting (“Mr Dong”), aged 67, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the Department of
Mathematics of Hangzhou University (#11X22) (now part of
Zhejiang University) in 1967 and received a master of science in
computer science at Sun Yat-sen University in 1982. Since 1981,
Mr Dong had been teaching in Hangzhou Dianzi University (#1
INEFRHEAE) and served as the Head of System Engineering
Teaching and Research Section (Rt T2 ZE1E) in 1986,
Head of the Department of Management Engineering ( &£ T2
ZF{F) in 1988, Dean of School of Business Administration (T
B ETTK) and vice-president of Hangzhou Dianzi University
(FINEFRIHEAER) in 1992. From 1989 to 1990, Mr Dong
had been engaged in research work at the University of Toronto.
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Mr Dong was appointed a professor by the Ministry of Mechanical
and Electronic Industry (## &+ 3%20) of the People’s
Republic of China in 1993. In February 1997, Mr Dong
was appointed as the president of China Electronic Industry
Development and Planning Institute (7B 1 T 3% % 18 215
ZBefE£). In October 1997, he was appointed the head (leading
role) of the Policy and Law Research Office of the Ministry of
Electronic Industry (EF T EZBFARIFTZE T (EFR))
of the People’s Republic of China in 1997. From 1998 to 2000,
he served as the president of China Electronic Planning Institute
(BT HEBBTE). Mr Dong was appraised as a doctoral post
graduate students tutor (18 +-#FEAEFEEHAD) by University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China (B FRHIAZ) in
2004. Mr Dong is currently the chairman of China Electronics
Enterprises Association (' BIE F1>%1%&) and also a managing
vice chairman (E#&/IE%E &) and legal representative of
China Association of Electronics Equipment For Technology
Development (IS FEEE AT ). He is currently an
independent director of Nantian Electronics Information Corp,
Ltd. (EMMAEFEEEXRMHARAR), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code of 000948, an
independent director of SuperMap Software Co., Ltd. (1t FFEE
RN AR A R]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code of 300036, an independent director of
Tianshui Huatian Technology Co., Ltd. (K/KFEXRIFRMDBR
‘A®]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with
stock code of 002185, and an independent director of Hongfa
Technology Co., Ltd. (ZRE R H AR A A]), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code of 600885. Mr
Dong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
June 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Wong Tik (“Ms Wong”) CPA, aged 40, is the company
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK). Ms
Wong joined SIM Technology (HK) on 1 April 2005 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Wong
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 29
February 2008. Ms Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 15
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms Wong obtained
the Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College in 1995.
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Report of the Directors BB ERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Group’s annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 59.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to

shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2012 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are set out on page 167 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties,
property, plant and equipment and land use rights of the Group are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company

are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2012 were approximately HK$137,464,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,846,000 and accumulated
losses of approximately HK$56,384,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Mr Zhang Jianping

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

Mr Liu Hong (Appointed on 1 March 2013)

Mr Wong Hei, Simon (Resigned on 21 January 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting
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In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws “Bye-
laws”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Mr Zhang Jianping and
Mr Liu Hong will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
Mr Liu Hong shall only hold office until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. Each of the aforesaid Directors, being eligible, has offer herself/

himself for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (CAP 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
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set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(a)

Long position in the shares of the Company and the shares of

associated corporations of the Company

Name of director

Exps

Mr Wong Cho Tung
THEREE

Ms Yeung Man Ying
BXHL L

Mr Wong Hei, Simon
TREE

Mr Zhang Jianping
SR EE

Ms Tang Rongrong
FERR L

Mr Chan Tat Wing Richard
RiEX

Name of
corporation

AEERE

Company
VNN
Company
/NS

Subtotal
B

Info Dynasty
Group Limited
(“Info Dynasty”)

Company
PN/NS
Company
VN/NS

Subtotal
B

Info Dynasty

Info Dynasty

Company

ARA

Company

ARA

Company

ARA

Nature of interest

BEME

Corporate interest (note 1)
NEER (L)
Personal interest
(EYN:

Personal interest
AR

Corporate interest (note 2)
NEER (PEE2)
Personal interest
(EYN: &

Personal interest
AR
Personal interest
AR

Personal interest
AR

Personal interest
(EPN

Personal interest
AR
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Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Total number of corporation
ordinary shares A EER
EERAH BREDL
(note 3)

(P 3)

1,177,902,000 69.09%
3,098,000 0.18%
1,181,000,000 69.27%
1,000 49.95%
1,072,942,500 62.93%
3,418,000 0.20%
1,076,360,500 63.13%
1,000 49.95%

1 0.05%

16,796,000 0.99%
3,800,000 0.22%
5,100,000 0.30%
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Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong") controls more than one-third of the
voting power of Info Dynasty. Mr Wong is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the 1,072,942,500 shares held by Info Dynasty in the
Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Both Intellipower Investments
Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom (BVI)") are
wholly-owned by Mr Wong and he is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the 74,455,500 shares and 30,504,000 shares held by Intellipower
and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the
SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more
than one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 1,072,942,500 shares held by Info
Dynasty by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the
issued share capital of 1,704,999,000 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short position of other persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Nature of interest

EEME

Name of shareholder

MR E
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Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Number of shares Company

in the Company TR Z
RAEXTZROEE BHABEDE
(note 1)

(f7E 1)

1,072,942,500 62.93%

Info Dynasty Personal interest

& A #E s
Notes:
1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share

capital of 1,704,999,000 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong are disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the human resources department and seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to factors including the Group’s operating results, responsibilities
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market

statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 43.5% of the Group’s total sales and sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately

18.5% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2012 did any Director,
any associate of a Director or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers

or five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 5 October 2012, the Company and Toman Investments Limited (the
“Underwriter”) entered into an underwriting agreement in relation to the
proposed rights issue of the Company of not less than 852,499,500 rights
shares but not more than 878,512,500 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.20 per rights share (the “Underwriting Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Underwriter was entitled to
a maximum underwriting commission of approximately HK$1.95 million.
The Underwriter was 25% owned by Mr Wong Sun, 25% owned by Mr
Wong Hei, Simon, 25% owned by Mr Wong Cho Tung and 25% owned
by Ms Yeung Man Ying. Since Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Yeung Man Ying
and Mr Wong Hei, Simon were directors of the Company at the date of the
Underwriter Agreement, the Underwriter was a connected person of the

Company. The rights issue was completed in January 2013.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code for securities transactions. All
Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the reporting

period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to
retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-appointment at the

Annual General Meeting.
On behalf of the Board
Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

21 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report EHEEBIRE

The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a board of directors with high quality, sound internal

control, transparency, accountability and independence.

Save as mentioned in this report, the Company has complied with the
code provisions laid down in (i) the former Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the period
from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and (ii) the revised and renamed
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(both hereinafter referred to as “Corporate Governance Code”) for the
period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. Setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

4. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of

management, board members; and

b. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board comprised six

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Mr Zhang Jianping

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Mr Dong Yunting

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 27 to 31 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section, none of the Directors has any connection (including financial,
business or family relationship) with each other as required to be

disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the roles of the chairman (Ms Yeung Man
Ying) were separated from those of the president (Mr Wong Hei, Simon)
in order to reinforce their respective independence, accountability and
responsibility. The chairman is responsible for developing direction and
strategies of the Group and the president, working with and supported by
the executive Directors, is responsible for managing the Group’s business
affairs, including the implementation of strategies adopted by the Board
and attending to the formulation and successful implementation of
Group’s policies and assuming full accountability to the Board for all

Group’s operations.
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Corporate Governance Report EEBRE

To further strengthen the corporate governance practice, on 30
March 2012, the Board has appointed Mr Zhang Jianping as the chief
executive officer of the Group to take up the responsibility of the overall
management of the Group’s product and business planning, including
management of product definition, sales, procurement, production and

delivery.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public

reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2012. The company
secretary of the Company shall prepare minutes and keep records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which

will be available for inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held two general
meetings in 2012. The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings and general meetings of the Company for the year
under review:

Number of Number of
general meetings Board meetings
attended/Number of attended/Number of

Name of Director general meetings held Board meetings held

Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/2 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 0/2 4/4
Mr Wong Hei, Simon 0/2 3/4
Mr Zhang Jianping 0/2 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong 0/2 3/4
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard 2/2 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2 3/4
Mr Xie Linzhen 0/2 4/4
Mr Dong Yunting 0/2 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board has
taken up the responsibility to nominate appropriate person, either to fill in
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will consider criteria such as the candidate’s
qualifications, experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the

requirements under the Listing Rules.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.
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Corporate Governance Report EEBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance functions in
accordance with code provision D3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
and has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and compliance, has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, has reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and has
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the year as well as the disclosures in this Corporate

Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (CAP 32 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) and the applicable accounting standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for

the period covered by the annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the
Board in achieving its goals of providing the packages needed to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company

successfully.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and approving the
grant of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted or to be adopted by the Company. Terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee which have been adopted by the Board

are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2012 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Xie Linzhen 1/1
Mr Dong Yunting 1/1
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his or her own

remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung,
Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, and one executive Director,
being Mr Wong Cho Tung. They have substantial experience in human
resources management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by

Mr Liu Hing Hung.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s Human Resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors has completed 12 months of services.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.
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Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as the independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on date of appointment
and subiject to the right of the independent non-executive Director or the
Company to terminate the appointment of the independent non-executive

Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice in writing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with the written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
to provide an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the
Group and oversee the audit process and other duties and responsibilities

as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2012 to review with senior
management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2011 annual financial statements and 2012
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each members at the Audit

Committee meetings for the year under review:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Xie Linzhen 2/2
Mr Dong Yunting 2/2
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong
Yunting. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2012 and the annual results for the year ended 31

December 2012 and has reviewed the Group’s internal control system.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the year ended
31 December 2012, the Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
external auditors of the Company, HK$1.7 million and HK$0.7 million for

their audit services and non-audit services respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the

Company is set out below:

Amount of fee paid

Audit services HK$1.7 million
Review of interim financial report 2012 HK$0.3 million
Other non-audit services (note) HK$0.4 million
Total HK$2.4 million

Note: The remuneration paid for other non-audit services mainly include HK$0.4 million
professional fees in relation to the issue of rights shares by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 57 to 58 of this

annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control systems have been designed to allow the Directors
to monitor the Group’s overall financial position, safeguard its assets,
provide reasonable assurance against fraud and errors, and to manage

the risks in failing to achieve the Group’s objectives.

The Group has a defined scope of authority governing activities of the
Directors and senior management. Directors monitor the business
activities closely and review monthly financial results operations. The

Group from time to time updates and improves the internal controls.

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them
at regular intervals. The Directors manages risks by strategic planning,
appointment of appropriately qualified and experienced personnel at
senior management positions, monitoring the Group’s performance
regularly, maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and
investments, and setting a high standard of code of conduct for

employees to follow.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other
major components of the internal control system of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to shareholders through sending the shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit,
convene a special general meeting, and special general meetings shall
also be convened on requisition and, in default, may be convened by the

requisitionists.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
head office at Unit 2908 on 29th Floor, 248 Queen‘s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)

months after the deposit of such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).
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The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be

convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general meeting other

than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).
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3. The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 2908 on 29th
Floor, 248 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, the head
office of the Company, for the attention of the company secretary
of the Company not less than six weeks before the meeting in the
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less

than one week in the case of any other requisition.

4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the
annual general meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
annual general meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not be

convened as requested.

The procedures for Shareholders to nominate persons for election as

Directors are available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders who have enquiries about the above procedures or have
enquiries to put to the Board may write to the company secretary of the
Company at the Company’s head office at Unit 2908, 29th Floor, 248
Queen’s Road East, wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity for
communications between the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting and the said notice is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Chairman and Directors will answer questions on the Group’s business
at the meeting. External auditors will also attend the Annual General

Meeting.
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According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer

questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2012
(2012 AGM"), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan
Tat Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer
of the Group, chaired the 2012 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the
Board pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and was available to
answer questions. Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent nonexecutive
Director and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, was also available at the 2012 AGM to answer questions from

shareholders of the Company.

Code provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with the
non-executive Director (including independent non-executive Director)
without the executive Directors present. As Ms Yeung Man Ying, the
Chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director, the Company has
deviated from this code provision as it is not applicable. Currently, the
Chairman may communicate with the non-executive Directors on a one-
to-one or group basis periodically to understand their concerns, to discuss
pertinent issues and to ensure that there is access to adequate and

complete information.
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According to the code provision A6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the independent non-executive Directors should also attend general

meetings of the Company.

At the 2012 AGM, Mr Xie Linzhen and Mr Dong Yunting, each an
independent non-executive Director, were unable to attend due to

unexpected business engagement.

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

requisition.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at
a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions put

to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of the
poll will be published on website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Financial and other information is made available on the Company’s
website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company at the Company'’s registered address at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11 Bermuda or the Company’s head office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has provided
regular updates to Directors on material changes to regulatory
requirements applicable to the Directors and the Company on a timely
basis and on the latest business development of the Company. The
Directors confirmed that they have complied with code provision A.6.5
of the Corporate Governance Code on directors’ training. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, all Directors namely, Ms Yeung Man Ying,
Mr Wong Cho Tung, Mr Wong Hei, Simon, Mr Zhang Jianping, Ms Tang
Rongrong, Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Xie Linzhen
and Mr Dong Yunting, have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related to their
roles, functions and duties of Directors such as corporate governance,
regulatory updates and topics related to telecommunications industry,

and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Independent Auditor's Report BT ET R &

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 166, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as of 31 December 2012 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2013
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation (charge) credit

Loss for the year
Loss for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share (HK cents)
Basic and diluted

Consolidated Income Statement iZSURSTR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes
Kzt

10

12

13

15

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAT
2,925,316 3,334,099
(2,643,345) (3,065,219)
281,971 268,880
84,047 55,970
(60,084) 51,182
(184,416) (183,639)
(114,745) (124,507)
(94,836) (98,773)
(7,344) (10,739)
(95,407) (41,626)
(1,492) 13,574
(96,899) (28,052)
(96,671) (25,478)
(228) (2,574)
(96,899) (28,052)
(restated)

(E=51)

(4.8) (1.4)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 7S 2 ERRTR

fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
—E-CF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiERr FAT
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E518) ‘& A (96,899) (28,052)
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEEEMEEmE
Exchange difference arising on translation BMEE 2| EMEENERERE
to presentation currency 19,911 68,738
Total comprehensive (expense) AEE2E () =i
income for the year (76,988) 40,686
Total comprehensive (expense) THRIEEGEZE
income attributable to: () Wes4a%8
Owners of the Company NABHER A (78,198) 42,687
Non-controlling interests IR S 1,210 (2,001)
(76,988) 40,686
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FESHFBIRRTR

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid for property,

plant and equipment

Current assets
Inventories

Properties under development for sales

Properties held for sales

Trade receivables

Notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables, deposits received
and accruals
Amounts due to shareholders on

oversubscription of Rights Issue

Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Net current assets
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Be RIBNFRIA
BHEMRITER
RITEBERE
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eI E SRR
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FE SRR /IR
e — R B A )
TR B IRFRR
RITEE
PRI

RBEEFE

Notes
Kzt

16
17
18
19
20
22
23

24
25
26
27
27

27

28
28

29

29

29

29
30

At 31 December 2012

R-F——F+-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT T
291,575 273,023
699,821 684,271
97,055 98,401

- 28,321

81,954 180,432
21,100 17,946
16,875 16,605

- 11,680
1,208,380 1,310,679
271,266 620,729
161,423 206,772
84,765 -
366,099 105,512
71,502 631,521
245,735 293,548
34,991 171,890
1,019,173 500,817
2,254,954 2,530,789
374,169 871,302
245,504 287,586
480,489 -
37,500 -
50,767 511,472
6,729 5,214
1,195,158 1,675,574
1,059,796 855,215
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #REHUBIRTR

At 31 December 2012
R-F——F+=-A=+—H

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income

HEERRBAR

BAXK#E
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s

EA/NEIL PN s
SRR

R
FRBEME

BEHIBRE
EIEA

The financial statements on pages 59 to 166 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013 and are signed on its

behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
THEE

DIRECTOR

EE
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Notes
Kzt

31
32

22
29

2012 2011
—%F-=F —F—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FRx THT
2,268,176 2,165,894
170,500 170,500
1,911,739 1,815,966
2,082,239 1,986,466
89,634 88,424
2,171,873 2,074,890
47,244 51,263
49,059 39,741
96,303 91,004
2,268,176 2,165,894
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CHAN TAT WING, RICHARD

DIRECTOR
EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in €Equity RSRERBEIFR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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At 1 January 2011 5--£-f-H 15%%2 3914 27599 - 99 nl4 o BN - 189 6761 191065 28025 181909
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Recogntionof equty et )

share-based paymerts 2z - - - - - 0% - - - - 101% - 101%
Partial disposalof equity interest

ina subsidiay (nofe ) - - - - - - - - - - - 040 6240
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - - (68781)  (68781) - (6878
31 December 2

All +ZR=1-A 17050 749467 21599 - 99 uMe BN 200 B1000 618 19646 8844 207489
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in €quity RS RERE SR

fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive
ncome for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for te year

(ross proceeds recelved from
Sharefolders upon Rights ssue
Expenses incurred upon
Rights Issue
Transfer upon forefure of
Share options
Recogriton ofequty setled
Share-besed payments

At 31 Decemboer
A1
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Attibutable to onners of the Company

RLTRRAR

Share  Properties
option  revaluation
Tsene  resene

1eserve

18473

Translation  Accumulated

proits
Eiril

HK$'000
TEr

(%,671)

Total
E

HK$'000
Thn

(%6,671)

18473

e
K ==

Total
4

HK$'000
7

(96,899)

19911

18473

(%,671)

(78.198)

(76,988)

FRE IR
i EfRR
HKS000  HKS'000
T TER
(8,138) -
7000 -

8138

170,500

(3,529)

7000

170,500

(3,529)

7000

640 73739

05,575

512605 2,082,239

89,634 2171873




Notes:

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in €quity RS EREEFR

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of
their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval
by the board of Directors of the relevant subsidiaries and by the
relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 4 November 2010, the Group signed a sale and purchase
agreement with a related company, which is controlled by Mr
Wong Sun, the son of Mr Wong Cho Tung and Ms Yeung Man
Ying who are Directors of the Company, on disposing 40% equity
interest of Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited at a consideration of
US$8,000,000 (approximately HK$62,400,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company announced
the issue of rights shares on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing shares held at subscription price of HK$0.20 per rights share
(the “Rights Issue”) and 852,499,500 rights shares will be issued by
the Company upon the completion of the Rights Issue. Details please
refer to note 39.

Hraz:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

A E ARKME ([ B ) EZRFERZHAE  RF
BRI B 8 A B B R RN IR 3% ) 2 B L AR AR50 A
10% tEEEBHRHFHS (REEZME QR EMEA50% 15
MRERSN) » %SRS ER AN EHERABRIEMER -
HERESHENBRARESE RAAMEERE 2 1E -

REBARBABEOREBBARZMARABER EHmE
TTEMAES 2 EAhf#E -

R-Z—ZFF+—AMB AREEBEIREE(FRARES
FHREERGXELZ L T) EENBEARDRITEEH
# * bA8,000,0003% 7T (494362,400,000/8 7T ) H ER R E %
(&2) BIRARH) 40% AXHE

REBE_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE  ARAEMAE
IR BEAR AR 19 0.20 B Tt 2 RE ERATHRR G - REREH
B FIRIR A RN % — ARGEARAR 1 (AR 1) - AR SE AR
% ANARIHEEE1T852,499, 500 % AR D © #F RS 2B
39-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows FSRERER

fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payments expense
Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible assets
Changes in fair values of
investment properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in properties under
development for sales and
properties held for sales
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
Decrease (increase) in notes receivables
Decrease (increase) in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(Decrease) increase in trade payables
(Decrease) increase in other payables,
deposits received, accruals
and deferred income

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest received

PRC tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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2012 2011
—%F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAR
(95,407) (41,626)
7,344 10,739
322,046 236,252
309 69
7,000 10,196

- (10,167)

943 -
11,450 31,725
28,321 -
31,320 -
(13,921) (17,702)
(10,724) (18,569)
288,681 200,917
339,527 (192,236)
(38,912) (89,775)
(261,273) 18,267
561,559 (503,623)
48,529 (5,456)
(499,258) 438,792
(29,159) 86,757
409,694 (46,357)
10,724 18,569
(7,700) (13,326)
412,718 (41,114)




INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Development costs paid

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares
Expenses on issue of shares
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Repurchase of shares
Partial disposal of equity interest
in a subsidiary
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary
Proceeds received upon Rights Issue
Expenses incurred on Rights Issue

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank
balances and cash

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows FERERER

REEH

BEME  BERR
REEDE  BER
R 2EE
ERFREKA
FARERRITER
REE ERRITER

RARREZFBZ2HEFE

BEEE

BITRD

FITRHRAX

RITEEMSHR

ERRTEE

[RARY; )

ERAE

El )

HE—FAHBAR
A A HE £

—R B AR
JEARRR R Z 23K

HARRER 2 FT S 70R

HAFTES 2 R

REBEZFH 2R EFE

RERAESEER
120 Ol ) F4E

FORERRELEEEA

Exgw o 28

FRASRRESEEER
HRTHEGREE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T—F+-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—B--F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
(84,609) (321,639)

- (11,680)
(164,772) (180,742)
(535,304) (460,778)
672,622 923,549
(112,063) (51,290)
- 237,624
- (7,708)
576,062 535,563
(1,038,014) (682,939)
- (68,781)
(7,344) (10,739)
- (18,617)

- 62,400

37,500 -
650,989 -
(3,529) -
215,664 46,803
516,319 (45,601)
500,817 534,522
2,037 11,896
1,019,173 500,817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RSB RFTMI ST

fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

—RE#

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) with limited liability. Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info
Dynasty”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, as the Directors consider
that it is a more appropriate presentation for a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and for the
convenience of the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of display modules,
handsets and solutions, wireless communication modules
and property development.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

K/Rﬂﬂ*ﬁ?@ﬁ%iﬁi&—ﬂ)\—iﬂET?%(,%@I%
FRBRESMALAEREER AT
EsRREFEZERARAInfo Dynasty Group
Limited ([ Info Dynasty ) + 52 A RIRA R R LA
E([EBRELZHE ) MR - A7 2+
MERRFESEMBEFRIATER—
MR ©

RARZEEEBEBARE ([ARE]) - Kix
BUBHRRABTITEY  HREZER/IER—
BMEABMEXHAERARN LR ARMAE
RARIRIR - BERRABETE2INERIAE °

ARB/—RREZERAT - HNBARZE
REBRBUREL - FHERRTT = R ERE
AR BE R AERBEERMEHR
& o

ﬁm%T&ﬁVTZ!%ﬂﬁﬁ
HER ([ BT IR EZER 1)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“Amendments to IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) which are
mandatorily effective for the current reporting period or which
may be early adopted.

IAS 12 (Amendments)
BHRe u+—/¢h/EIJ§|% 12 5% (1 »:J$)

IFRS 7 (Amendments)

E’\ZJSEF* C REERA T HBER SRR
Be((HReEAZBE]) B ERY
&R REET ([ BIBR I 75 s R &
F11) » BRFERTIA AN S A 58 AR R AT 4R
RIERAR

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets;

EIERIR — W AERE B

Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers

of financial assets; and

BRI TSR LRI 7 5% (BT A)

Except as disclosed below, the adoption of the Amendments
to IFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS M HRFTIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T—F1-A=+—HIFE

BRANFTE] B ARAEE] 2 B PR B A5 3R
F:SEI (I BB B F 3 5 22 A )

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred tax: recovery of underlying
assets

Under the amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred tax: recovery of
underlying assets”,
using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40
“Investment property” are presumed to be recovered through

investment properties that are measured

sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair
value model. As a result of the application of the amendments
to IAS 12, the Directors reviewed the Group’s investment
property and concluded that the Group'’s investment property
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodies in the investment
property over time, and that the presumption set out in the
amendments to IAS 12 is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to the Group’s investment property has
been measured based on the tax consequences of recovering
the carrying amounts entirely through use.

Previously, the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
entire carrying amounts of the investment properties were
recovered through use. As a result, the application of the
amendments to IAS 12 in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

B EERAFE 1250EERE | WEHBEE
CCHEN)

RIEBERR 25T RIS 1255 [EEFETE — Y E 4
BEE] (BF]IAX)  MEtEEERIEMS @ &
FREPR 2 AERISE 405 R E M I A FEE
N2 REVEDNRBREEBLEMKE - 5
FARELE TIER TR EIRIN o

$%l2&éﬁ%¥ﬁéﬁﬁ@ﬂ?@%ﬁ%‘+§ o AR
ERBEBR 2 EAF 12 (BRIR) EFE
HASE 2 REMZEETEN  REAEER
FREE A RAFNE ([ R ) 2 I8 E Y3 T IR BE RS
FEFEAT D ERZSREMENLEN =R
PEERAFEE - WEHBBEEEERE 1258
(BT A) FrEi ek - Bt - BAREEIREYE
mfﬁé’mﬂﬂlﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ B {5 AU B 2 SR E
BENHGRRGE

ZHT ARBRREYEEBEATMKE 2
BREEREERRBREME QN FERE T
B - FEE - RAFERBBERE S ERIE 12
5 (BRTAR) Bz SR e M smR R & AT
IR BRI EATE -
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2. ﬁé,%lh%ﬁ“T&,%‘éﬂ““TZF%% g e
=R ([ BB F B | EZER 1)

-
==

P
c
ﬁf
\/

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

BIBR B T 3R LRI IERT

IFRS 7 (Amendments)

BRI 53R AL RIS 7 5% (18 FTA)

IFRS 9
BUR B 5 ¥ S5 2R R 28 9 8%

IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

(Amendments)
BlRR B S F R & 42 RIZE O 51

KBRS 75 (BRTA)

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

(Amendments)
BRSBTS 3R S 4ERIZE 1058

BB SRS 2RI 11 5 &

BIBR B IS R 2ERI 25 12 5% (B3] 4)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Amendments)
BB B 75 s 2RI S8 10 5%

B R B 75 i MR R 28 12 57 %

BB 2ERI%E 27 5% (83T 4N)

IFRS 10

BIFR B T3R5 22 RIS 10 5%

IFRS 11

BRI TSR 2ERIZE 11 5%

IFRS 12
BIRR AR5 3R SRR 1258
IFRS 13

BIFR I T RS 2R A28 13 5%

70

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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Annual improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 cycle except
for the amendments to IAS 1t
BRI BHREEN TN T ——FEHANFE
B - BIRR g SRS 1SR B BGERR M

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities!

BRE-HHTREENRSREE!

Financial instruments?
SRTAS

Mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

B IR B 75 3 o 22 ) 55 O 51 2 SR Il AE R B B B BIR M B R 2

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements
and disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition

guidance!
IREPBIRE KRR REENEMERE 2 s
BEES!

Investment entities?

BREER?

Consolidated financial statements!

REMBERR!

Joint arrangements!
HEZHE!
Disclosure of interests in other entities!

WENEMERE 2 !

Fair value measurementt

AT(EIE!



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS M HRFTIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

?X%W%JTT&,%‘M“‘TZI@E g e
=R ([ BB F B | EZER 1)

= A==~
=

P
c
ﬁf
\/

IAS 1 (Amendments)
ERIIZE 157 (IBETA)

IAS 19 (as revised in 2012)
B2 ERIE 1957 (=2 —

BfR gt

—FRYERT)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

BIRR &R 2RI 27 5% (- T — —F&ERT)

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
RE SRS 28 5% (=T ——F&YEE])

IAS 32 (Amendments)

BIRR & SRS 32 5% (BRTA)
IFRIC 20
ERMBEREREZB SR 20%

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (as revised in October 2010) adds requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities

and for derecognition.

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income*
2FH M EKEER

Employee benefits!

B BRI

Separate financial statements!

B B TRk

Investments in associates and joint venturest
REgE R R RAERENIRE!

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities?

HiHemEERSRAE?

Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine!

BB R HE 5 B P BR A U BRA R

! N_T—=F— A BARZRARNFEHRE
He

2 N_T—MFE— - AR RARNFEHRRE
He

3 N_F—hF— A BRZEAROFEHRRE
He

¢ N_T——F A AR RAROFEHRRE
He

BB RELEREIREMTA

BRI B EENE IR eRmIA (R=ZZ
NEEM)  SIATHBERFAESREENH
2K - BRMBHmEENFEIFIE/mIA (=
E-TFET ARG ENEREEL B R
SAREUERERAIRE

[
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BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

BRANETR] R RS FT 2 BIRR B 35 3R
=R ([ BB F B | EZER 1)
(%)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (conTINUED)
Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to measurement of financial liabilities that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T—F1-A=+—HIFE

BRANFTE] B ARAEE] 2 B PR B A5 3R
é:.;/i‘isﬁl (I BB B F 3 5 22 A )

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

The Directors anticipate that IFRS 9 that will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2015 and that the application of
IFRS 9 will mainly affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of IFRS 9 until a detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In May 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements. IFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

In June 2012, the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS
12, were issued to clarify certain transition guidance on the
application of these five IFRSs for the first time.

BT BREENEIREHMTA ()
EEEMBRMBEREEAFEIFHRAEE

@§_§—£¢+*H:+—Etﬁ7fﬂzifﬁé’\]
RAPBHRERPERA - MRAERMBRSE
EUJ%97&Hﬁ£§$§%7«l&%@—fﬁﬂj%&§m%
BRGTE - A - N FREEHR - 85
BRI i S ERIFE SRV B 17:.1215#

EHSEAEE HARH HEATRKEZ
AT RAMERT A
F_Tffﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂ ERGEBIERE K
HEZHE  BE QR RIFEREN - B
ﬁf’%fﬂﬁ%i&%%‘éﬂu% 105% - BIBREA ISR & 2R
F115 - BT BEHRELDF 125 - EEest
HRIF 275 (Z T ——F8R]) RBEBR &t
RIZE 285k (=T ——F&HYEET) ©

ZABERNEZREHMOT -

BRR B T HR & 2E RS 10 SRER B &7t RIS

27 SR 4R RIBI SRR | B AR IEBIAR A TS
R ZED o BIREI RS ERIE 10578 5%

Rz ER - HRBE=EIE : (a) GHE

BIREHR - (b) 5/,\&§£% B PT1S R 8
Bl 2 APESHER] - R (C)ESNERE LR EY

%Z%ﬁu%ﬂ&ﬁ%@ﬁi% B B2 B 75 =R
AR 105RE BB R 2 BB EMAF

#HE35| °
BUFR B 75 S 22 AR 12 55 7 — TR ERAER - i@
FAREHTEAR « £RZHE  BE AR R K

R EEEREAREIEN BT -
ERHBREEAE 1232 BB R
TR RTEARE -

R-F——FXA BREMEHREENSEL0
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.

BRANETR] R RS FT 2 BIRR B 35 3R
=R ([ BB F B | EZER 1)
(%)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (CONTINUED)
These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transition guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is
permitted provided that all of these five standards are applied
early at the same time. The Directors anticipate that the
application of these five standards is not expected to have a
material impact on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under IFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
Directors anticipate that the application of the new standard
may affect the amounts of available-for-sale investments
reported in the consolidated financial statements and result
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HER ([ BERR M ERE 2R )
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (&)

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of items of other BB ERSE 158 ((B5TAR) 25 H 2 E UK
comprehensive income #=IFH

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit BB ERERE 1R (ST AR)REB AR —EE
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single —RERAARREE L MEE 2 SRR AN 258
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. mREMEE R B ERE o Am - BEIREs
However, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional RN 15 (BFTA) e AR E A 2 EH = 56
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income ﬁﬂfﬁ REONEEE - BHMEEKERIBEE 9D AR
section such that items of other comprehensive income B/ EBRBTEENSERIERZEHE &
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be (b) Elféﬁﬁ HEGRGRAEFsEEERZ
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items HE - Hb2EW=RIE B 2 TSR AZARE
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when S o

specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other

comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the

same basis.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods B2 2205 157 (IBFT4S) 5 = :f*_ﬁ
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items +A—BxkzERABz FEHBEER - KRAR
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly StHMERZEER  EtemkzsEe
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting Z 25 ELABFEISER o

periods.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application RARESEG }fx’ ME MR R AEIER] BIRR
of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no material P REERBF IS LT BRREEEKR
impact on the consolidated financial statements. T o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREHBE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in other reserve and attributed
to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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EXETBER (8)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and properties sold in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)
Revenue from the sale of goods and properties is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and
properties;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods and
properties sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Repair and maintenance income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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EXETBER (8)

Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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EXETBER (8)

Government grants (CONTINUED)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those
transferred from property, plant and equipment and land use
rights which are measured at fair value at date of transferred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair value using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, other
than construction in progress, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

84

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012

- BERRE

ME - BERRE(BERELEESRERY
HMRISHEEEY) - AR TR RAKAIRE
BRFHEAREMREBERBR - REaM
AR KGR

TERAELRE  BYE  BEERE(ERE
TREINBEEFBEEREMBAIERF
HAMORELACA » fEET AT B FH - R EEN
WENFESEREHRERR R - XKRA
RRELEFFEMARENTE

ERETREEERNEE  REEMHTERARE
BVIE - BB RRE - ARARRE RRRE
BRIk - KARREXEARBREARES
AHRHAERBEEENMENBERR - 2%
YIRTLRIED AMERER SR D BREE
Y% - BE RERRER - BEEMYREE—
o BELBEEIAEREREERBT
2 o

EVE BELRBHREAXEITBEER &

REMEREMARRENER - ZHE NS
FEAZRESREARFEZFAEAZERE

bEE B afER RN EE-EFHRANRT - B
RHENMEZEER - MEEAREEEE
BARFHRA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS M HRFTIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T—F1-A=+—HIFE

EXETBER (8)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms, except for those held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as investment
properties are carried at fair values.

If a land use right becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by the end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and included in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Intangible assets BEEE
Research and development expenditure HaREAZEH

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS B HRFRIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EXETBER (8)

Intangible assets (coNTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Technical know-how acquired in a business combination
comprises the rights to use certain technologies for the
manufacture of wireless communication modules and
handsets and solutions.
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ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS B HRFRIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EXETBER (8)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the
land use rights and development cost of the property. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises the related land cost,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to
the Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable costs
incurred during the development period. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on the
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to either
available-for-sale investments or loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS M HFRIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, notes receivable,
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments and an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment loss on financial assets (coNTINUED)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

92

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012

ERT A (&)

EHEERE (F)

SIRE A IR S MEEMNS - EAFE
EREECHE $SEERSETHEIREES

1B WIREEREERZRA BRI ETERN
EEIARKAERENRERNER I ZRAE -

BRiEM E 5 R R AR BE TR R ERH
BIN - FrEEREEZ REER B EIRER
BT AR o JAREERREE 2 B BRI AR
=@ ATER ° Eéﬁﬁ’éﬂlﬁlﬁﬁm?ﬁmﬂf—ﬂiﬁ Hif
e RRAE M LS - BE1R 6 M DARTHSH < 518
BEf ABE °

MILBHER A ENSREENS @ WREH
BEE—HIRE - RERIERN SRR A B
WD RA] BERREBERERENEHEEL
BRI - 2 B HERR AR B B 1R 1 15 1 1R
B - WARZIAE ER B ERER B REET
B i O SR 58 % BB R B R OB SRR AR
AIGEAETTRE -

AHHERAKRE 2 REBBRR N EEBERE
e

EHEERKITR
A—SKEBERABRITZEBREARTATIRE
PfraTiE’\J/a\%’Jﬁz?iFﬁ'JW”M&%wﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁxl"
TENEER  DBERSRBEEIRBATA
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (conNTINUED)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, amounts due to shareholders on
oversubscription of Rights Issue, amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and bank borrowings)
are initially measured at fair values and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EXETBER (8)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Derecognition (conTINUED)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EEF P REMENEZRR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials based primarily on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items. If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances
may be required. During the year ended 31 December
2012, write-down of inventories of HK$11,450,000 (2011:
HK$31,725,000) is charged to profit or loss. As at 31
December, 2012, the carrying amount of inventories is
approximately HK$271,266,000 (2011: HK$620,729,000).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. fAEFTEEMNEERR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables

In estimating whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
aging status and the likelihood of collection. When there
is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the net carrying amounts
of trade receivables are approximately HK$366,099,000
(2011: HK$105,512,000). Details of trade receivables are
disclosed in note 27.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment is lower than its carrying amount. At the end of
the reporting period, no property, plant and equipment was
impaired based on the impairment assessment performed
by management. It is possible that actual outcomes may be
different from assumptions, having a material impact on the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment in the
period when such estimate is revised. At 31 December 2012,
the Directors of the Company are satisfied that there is no
indication that property, plant and equipment has suffered
an impairment loss. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment are approximately
HK$699,821,000 (2011: HK$684,271,000).
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UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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A TREMENEEZRR (F)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Determining whether goodwill and technical know-how
included in intangible assets allocated to cash generating
unit (“CGU") are impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the sale of handsets and solutions CGU. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU with a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise. During the year ended 31
December 2012, management revised the estimated future
cash flows due to unsatisfactory performance of the CGU
and impairment losses on goodwill and technical know-
how of HK$28,321,000 and HK$18,902,000 (2011: nil),
respectively, were recognised to profit or loss. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation of goodwill and technical
know-how are disclosed in note 21.

Determining whether licence fee and development costs
included in intangible assets allocated to CGUs are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the sale of
handsets and solutions and sale of wireless communication
modules CGUs. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGUs with a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, management
revised the estimated future cash flows due to unsatisfactory
performance of the CGU of sale of handsets and solutions and
impairment losses on licence fee and development costs of
HK$3,947,000 and HK$8,471,000 (2011: nil), respectively,
were recognised to profit or loss. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of licence fee and development costs are
approximately HK$7,560,000 and HK$74,394,000 (2011:
HK$17,597,000 and HK$124,238,000), respectively. Details
of the recoverable amount calculation of licence fee and
development costs are disclosed in note 21.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

A TREMENEEZRR ()

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC and certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised
their land appreciation tax calculations and payments with
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group
recognised the land appreciation tax based on management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax
is finalised with local tax authorities.

Estimated of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by reference to the discounted cash
flow projections based on estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of existing lease and reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent what knowledgeable
willing parties would assume about rental income for future
leases in the light of current conditions, using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2012, investment
properties of approximately HK$291,575,000 (2011:
HK$273,023,000) were revalued.
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UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BREMEZIEERE

Bt EURATFEERAE R ENERELZ
BEFIE  ARRESTEHNAEEZREY
EEE  URBAEEZEEYETEBEN
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WTEASE R 2 ETIERFHE o Bt - Rt =
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HE2HKREAAFERXGFEZREMER
EE 2 BRI - Bt - BRAAEEIZE
M7 RERRAC RB R SR 12577
o —RRAGE -

ERMTH

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 30 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
disclosed in note 31, reserves and accumulated profits as
disclosed in consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

£RMITE (&)

Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including Bk IR BR TR
cash and cash equivalents) (BEEREERELEEER) 1,582,726 1,545,911
Available-for-sale investments AMHEZIRE 16,875 16,605
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost B $HA A 1,015,271 1,480,540
Financial risk management objectives and policies B EREEN EEEBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade receivables and payables, notes
receivables, other receivables and payables, accruals,
amounts due to shareholders on oversubscription of Rights
Issue, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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SRET A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 20% (2011: 34%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 40% (2011:
26%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, notes receivables, bank balances, trade
payables and bank borrowings and the amounts are disclosed
in notes 27, 28, 29 and 30 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

United States Dollars (“USD”) ETT

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency expose should
the need arise.

B EEREE I B R ()

EHmeg
REBEZZMBARAIIMNEETEER - €A%
BmEESNE R - REBHEEBEH20% (=F
——% :34%) UEEBERETEENDRES
BN E M EHE » MA40% (ZF——%F:
26%) MR ARIARE BBHIIEEHAE -

RBERR - AEENEIZeMEERAE
NEZEEEEBESEIASINEEE -
HAEERAERERE SR  BREE -
RITHER BNEBESRARRITEE - I8
SR BRI 27 « 28 + 29 R 30 #:5% -

RI|ER - AEBAINETHENEEEER
ERaBENREENT

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E-—F —FT——F B —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TR FET THTT

115,044 260,920 173,950 796,745
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HEAINERR o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

£@MITE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (coNTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2011: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2011: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% (2011: 10%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss where RMB strengthen 10% against USD for
the both years. For a 10% weakening of RMB against USD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
loss and the balances below would be negative.

Post-tax loss iz EE

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, notes and bills receivables,
pledged bank deposits, and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2012 and 2011 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good credit-rating.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2012,
two (2011: two) customers amounting to HK$272,788,000
(2011: HK$81,130,000) comprised approximately 75%
(2011: 77%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These
customers are within the same mobile phone technology
industry in the PRC. The management closely monitors the
subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

5.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
bank borrowings amounted to HK$50,767,000 (2011:
HK$511,472,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities.
In accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows amount to HK$51,187,000 (2011:
HK$513,720,000). However, should the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$50,767,000 (2011: HK$511,472,000) will be repayable
on demand. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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5.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T —F+-A=+—HIFE

£@MITE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis point
(2011: 100 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") arising from the Group’s variable interest rate bank
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of
bank borrowings had been 100 basis point (2011: 100 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 would increase/decrease by HK$424,000 (2011:
HK$3,970,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

B EEREE A B R ()

FEmbE
REBAARGRT RRITIEE MBITERN
R mAERRER -

K’E@ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬂ%%ﬁ#ﬁk%ﬁ o R
BEEEERTEERMSANEEBMARZ
ﬂi?ﬁﬁﬁmé)ﬁﬁ’]lﬂﬁﬁ WA T B B B+
MG Rz B8 - SR 100 EER(—F——
F : 100fEIEES) 2 &8 - TJ&%$£¥¥TW
ZBEREEL 25 -

REBRSRBNEE S EEEPEREEN
FRBTEEEEZMBRITEERE (R
RITRIZENE 1)K

HEEAIT
BRERR  BRTSMNEEBEN - Eﬁl$‘§
EEGE BRITEREBRARRRSRER - B
it BRES T EEIEF BIRITA ﬁ%

BREESMINZBRERESHREGREENS
MTAREFANREEMRE - MIRITEEF
K EF/TRERI0ER(=ZZT——%F : 100%
B)MABEMEBEREFTE  AEEHEZ
E——E+ - f=+—RHILFEENHREER
1S &, A 424,000 (T ——4 :
3,970,000 7T) - EEBRHANANEEF SR
TEERNFIRERATE -
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—_Z-——F+-_A=+—HULEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 5. €RTHE(E)
Fair value ATE
The fair value of financial assets with standard terms and A RIER Rz eMEEZ ATFETIR
conditions are determined with reference to quoted market EMBEAREET - Bt eRHEENSHE
bid prices. The fair value of other financial assets and financial EZ AFENZEARHEEENBRENTRR S
liabilities is determined in accordance with general accepted MEDNT T LAETE °
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BERAE - PEREMIERE P AR AT R
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in ZEMEENMS@MAGBZ REELREQAFEHE
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair FE
values.

6. REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for WAIBE EEY R FEBRREE M E WGKIE
goods and properties sold net of returns. K FEMIERSK ©

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. DEER

Information reported to the executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The Group is currently organised into four reportable and
operating segments — sale of handsets and solutions,
sale of display modules, sale of wireless communication
modules and property development. These reportable and
operating segments are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
executive Directors in order to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T —F+-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
Segment revenue and results PERAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TRAEAEBEZZHEEBLEZWMARE
by reportable and operating segment. BT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—F——Ff—H=+—HIFE
Sale of Sale of
handsets Sale of wireless
and display communication
solutions modules modules Property Segments
HEFHR HE HEERSZ  development total  Elimination  Consolidated
BRAER ETER BAER NERR APEEE i &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr i THn T#n T#n FhR FhR
Revenue WA
External sales HINEE 2,091,066 204,195 489,964 140,091 2,925,316 - 2,925,316
Inter-segment sales PEREE - 175,061 - - 175,061 (175,061) -
Total &g 2,091,066 379,256 489,964 140,091 3,100,377 (175,061) 2,925,316
Segment (loss) profit AR (BE)&EF (126,812)  (17,694) 21,406 10837 (112,263) - (112,263)
Other income HilA 30,516
Corporate expenses ARAX (20,237)
Gain from changes in fair ~~ REWEATE
values of investment Bl
properties 13,921
Finance costs BWEKA (7,344)
Loss before taxation BHAIEE

(95,407)
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED) DHEBARELE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 B F——F - HA=F+—HIFE
Sale of Sale of
handsets Sale of wireless
and display communication
solutions modules modules Property Segments
HEFHR HE HEER  development total  Elimination  Consolidated
BRAR ENESR ERI NEER PREE i35 e

HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THEr TiEr TiEr T T T Tn

Revenue WA

External sales H9NEE 2,608,071 132,454 593,574 - 3,334,099 - 3,334,099

Inter-segment sales PEREHE - 200,403 - - 200,403 (200,403) =
Total k] 2,608,071 332,857 593,574 = 3,534,502 (200,403) 3,334,099
Segment (loss) profit P (BE) &R (9,722) (35,009) 10,529 (6,244) (40,446) - (40,446)
Other income HiplA 31433
Corporate expenses RAAX (39,576)
Gain from changes infar ~ REWEATE

values of investment ol

properties 17,702
Finance costs BERK (10,739)
Loss before taxation BHAIEE (41,626)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of gain from changes in fair values of investment properties,
rental income, interest income, certain other income,
corporate expenses, finance costs and taxation. This is the
measure reported to the executive Directors for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at mutually agreed terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEENRARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities TR AEFIZT 2RI EEDHEDHNE
by reportable and operating segment: ENBEIN
At 31 December 2012 R-E——fF+=-H=+—H
Sale of Sale of
handsets Sale of wireless
and display communication
solutions modules modules Property
HEFHER HE HERS  development  Consolidated
BRAR BETER BAER NERRE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEx ThERL ThRL Thn ThEx
Segment assets PEEE 1,013,468 193,636 499,403 277,221 1,983,728
Investment properties IS 291,575
Property, plant and equipment ER e 1,405
Deferred tax assefs EREREEE 21,100
Available-for-sale investments EHERE 16,875
Other receivables, deposits EthEIRERSS -
and prepayments & RBNFE 94,487
Pledged bank deposits BEAROER 34,991
Bank balances and cash RITEBRREE 1,019,173
Consolidated assets GREE 3,463,334
Segment liabiltties PEEE
— attributable to sale of display modules —HEBTERER - 168,821 - - 168,821
— attributable to property development ~NERREES - - - 103,354 103,354
— attributable to operating segment —HEBETERR
other than sale of display modules NEERIIMIEE
and property development (note) DML () 353,780
625,955
Other payables, deposits received HitERE - ElRe
and accruals REETE 80,277
Amounts due to shareholders on HiREE BRI R R
oversubscription of Rights Issue 480,489
Bank borrowings ROEE 50,767
Tax payable MR 6,729
Deferred tax liabilities EEHARE 47,244
Consolidated liabilities GAERE 1,291,461
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED) PEEEREE (E)
At 31 December 2011 N —E——Ff - F=+—H
Sale of Sale of
handsets Sale of wireless
and display  communication
solutions modules modules Property
HEFHRER HE HEES  development  Consolidated
S BNER BAELR NEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Segment assets PEEE 1,795,330 359,119 378,461 255,162 2,788,072
Investment properties REME 273,023
Property, plant and equipment % - BEREE 3467
Deferred tax assets BERREE 17,946
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 16,605
Deposits paid for property, plant RIE - BER
and equipment SEX RS 11,680
Other receivables, deposits HitRUWERS « B8
and prepayments RIENTE 57,968
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 171,890
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE 500,817
Consolidated assets GREE 3,841,468
Segment liabilities PEEE
— attributable to sale of display modules —HEBEREREN - 300,438 - = 300,438
— attributable to property development ~MEEREN - - - 50,246 50,246
— attributable to operating segment ~HEBRERR
other than sale of display modules MEERMIMEE
and property development (note) DEEL (H2) 737,642
1,088,326
Other payables, deposits received HtERRR - Elike
and accruals RIERTE 110,303
Bank borrowings RITfEE 511472
Tax payable ERFIR 5214
Deferred tax liabilties EEREAE 51,263
Consolidated liabilities TRAR 1,766,578
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T —F+-A=+—HIFE

2 EER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)

Note: Liabilities attributable to reportable and operating segments
other than sale of display modules and property development
represented payables to common suppliers of the reportable
and operating segments other than sale of display modules and
property development, which cannot be allocated to the respective

segments on a reasonable basis.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than investment properties, certain
property, plant and equipment, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, deposits paid for property,
plant and equipment, available-for-sale investments,
deferred tax assets and certain other receivables,
deposits and prepayments. Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on sale of display modules
and property development, the remaining liabilities
are allocated between payables jointly consumed by
reportable and operating segments on sale of handsets
and solutions and sale of wireless communication
modules and corporate liabilities. Corporate liabilities
include other payables, deposits received and
accruals, tax payable, amounts due to shareholders on
oversubscription of Rights Issue, bank borrowings and
deferred tax liabilities.

TREERAE(H)

Mzt HEBRTRBEMERRIANZT2RREED
BRIEZAE  RHERTRR R ERRIAIN
ZA2RREES P2 A EBEEETE - &
ERAREAEAREBMAR -

EESBRANNESIBEER -

o KBREME ETUE BELERE-
EERRITER RITEHRIRE - 5
ME  BERRBEXNZERE T
ERE  BEMEEENE T HMER
%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁuﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BoEEr 2R EESE - £ENR
ARERNEEREZED \%ﬁmm
WARE + K

BRAREEREERTERMYERR
ZAIEmEEBEBNBZAGEIN  HRA
EEDELE M HETHMRRTT REH
EERGBABRRZAZRRLESEH
FUEFRE ERTARER - ARBEBE - 1
XaEEREMENERER  2dRER
FERTRIA ~ B - ﬁiﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁwuﬁﬁfﬁ
NBERFIA - RITEEMRERIARE
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BE—ZT-—F+-A=+ALFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER (&)
Other segment information Hittp &R
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE_F—_—Ff+_F=1+—HILFE
Sale of Sale of
handsets Sale of wireless
and display communication
solutions modules modules Property
HETHR HE $EEES  development  Unallocated  Consolidated
BRAR ETRER BAER NERE KAE Ge
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEr FEL FEL FEL Fhr Fhr
Amounts included in the HENFERY
measure of segment profit PEEESR
or loss or segment assets: MEE:
Additions of property, plant RENE  BE
and equipment P 47,929 27,277 16,099 108 473 91,886
Additions of intangible assets NEEFEE 117,571 - 51,004 - - 168,575
Depreciation of property, N KER
plant and equipment XETE 49,137 15,830 20,238 479 337 86,021
Amortisation of intangible assets & # 186,834 - 50,088 - - 236,922
Amortisation of land use rights ~ TEfEFREZ S 1,662 225 1,019 - - 2,906
Write-down of inventories & 9,276 - 2,174 - - 11,450
Impairment loss recognised SENE ZIRH R
in respect of trade receivables BRI 943 - - - - 943
Impairment loss recognised REERRL
in respect of goodwill HESE 28,321 - - - - 28,321
Impairment loss recognised TENEERTL
in respect of intangible assets  REEE 31,320 - - - - 31,320
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BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)

Other segment information (coNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Amounts included in the HENBERY
measure of segment profit PEEESR
or loss or segment assets: MeE:

Additions of property, RENZE R
plant and equipment P

Additions of intangible assets  FEEREE

Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RETE

Amortisation of infangible assets &/ B

Amortisation of land use rights T 3trfE FRiEEH

Reversal of allowance forbad ~ RE2HREFAD
and doubtful debts

Write-down of inventories FEMR

Revenue from major products

Sale of handsets and solutions

Sale of display modules

Sale of wireless communication
modules

Sale of residential properties

Hitvy BEHR ()

E=F—— A=+ —HILFE

Sale of Sale of

handsets Sale of wireless

and display - communication

solutions modules modules Property
HEFHER HE HEES  development  Unallocated  Consolidated
L VIES ENER BESR NEERE RAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR TR TR
231,219 80,578 64,172 559 1,253 377,781
97,373 - 88,350 - - 185,723
27,999 12,903 10,229 333 255 51,769
130,283 - 57,091 - - 187,379
1,560 186 339 - - 2,085
10,167 - - - - 10,167
22,293 3,354 6,078 - - 31,725
KEEBEERNBA
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HEFHRBRAT R 2,091,066 2,608,071
SHE B TR 204,195 132,454
SHE AR BAE R

489,964 593,574
HEFEME 140,091 =
2,925,316 3,334,099
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT-—F+-A=+ALFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2 EER (&)

Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group, deriving
revenue from the Group’s reportable and operating segments
other than property development segment, are as follows:

Customer A ZEA

This customer operates in the mobile phone technology
industry in the PRC.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially
located in the PRC, the country of domicile from which the
group entities derive revenue and hold assets. Accordingly, no
further analysis is presented.

ER—BEREFHNER

RARFERE —REAKEAHEHER
10%MEP - BREANEEYEERDEIN]
ERNEEDRHBANT

2012 2011
—®-—F —T—7
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT
540,083 949,104

ZEBPRHER B FHRIMERLEE -

ih B
REBBARIERBEETERAPE - BAIA
EENERBEARARBEEEZFTER - B
It - WS — DI °

8. OTHER INCOME Hpug A
2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT
Refund of VAT (note (1)) BRETRT (M172 (1)) 17,395 12,695
Government grants (note (2)) BUFEEB WA (A1 (2) 22,010 10,237
Interest income earned on RITEERRELZ
bank balances FEWA 10,724 18,569
Rental income (Less: outgoings of S WA
HK$1,980,000 (2011: HK$1,625,000)) (R, + 111,980,000 7T
(ZZ2——% : 1,625,000%7T)) 19,792 12,864
Repairs and maintenance income (note (3)) 418 RRBUWA (A1:#(3)) 12,426 =
Others Hith 1,700 1,605
84,047 55,970
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OTHER INCOME (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

Notes:

(1)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”), Shanghai
Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited (“Simcom Wireless”) and
Shanghai Basecom Limited, wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, are engaged in the business of distribution of self-
developed and produced software. Under the current PRC tax
regulation, they are entitled to a refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT")
paid for sales of self-developed and produced software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$11,950,000 (2011: HK$9,420,000)
unconditional government grants received in 2012 which was
granted to encourage for the Group’s research and developments
activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group also received government grants of HK$20,120,000
(2011: HK$18,940,000) towards the cost of development of
wireless communication modules and handsets and solutions in
Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received is deferred and is
transferred to other income to match actual expenditure used in
research and development activities and HK$10,060,000 (2011:
HK$817,000) was recognised in the profit or loss during the year.
As at 31 December 2012, an amount of HK$58,008,000 (2011:
HK$47,028,000) remains to be amortised and is included in other
payables.

The amount represents repairs and maintenance services provided
to a customer of the sale of mobile handsets and solutions during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

ARAZWBARFEESRM (LB AR
m([ DesEEl)  CHasEaiis (g AR
REN(EEBER]) REERESRM (L8)AF
RARBNEDHBETREREENL - RIF
RERTZRBER  ETEMHESTHRER
EEZEMHEBMNZBER (EER]) AIZAR
B e

WEREEN T —FIRBIEGMH ZBFRE
A 11,950,000 7T (= F——4 : 9,420,000 7%
TT) » USEASERHEEFHEES o

Uoh  AEBREE_T——F+=-A=+—H
1H4FE IRES BT B A 20,120,000 7 7T (=
T ——4F : 18,940,000/ 7T) * BIER LB RE
P35 5A 2 A B AT AR R e TF 0 R AR OR T RE KA o
Frl R 2 B EIECE Y - WESREEHMRA
R A 5B EER M - 10,060,000 7%
T (ZZ——4 : 817,000/ 7T) B RFAEBZ
FHER - R_T——F+-RA=+—H —%
58,008,000 7T (= ZF——%F : 47,028,000/487T)
BURIB AR SHI B T AL A FEFERK ©

hEeBEREBE—T——F+-_A=1+—HI1LF
ERHEFHRERATREFIRHEZBERIRE
R °
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HithzmREE
2012 2011
T —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - HE
plant and equipment WE el i (309) (69)
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain HNEE (E518) Uz S48 (13,112) 23,382
Changes in fair values of HEMENTFEEZE)
investment properties 13,921 17,702
Reversal of allowance for bad RERB D
and doubtful debts (note (1)) (Hfa£ (1)) - 10,167
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts ~ RIZBRE (& (943) -
Impairment loss recognised in T EER ZRE
respect of goodwill (note (2)) E518 (H1aE (2) (28,321) -
Impairment loss recognised in HELEERRLZ
respect of intangible assets (note (2))  BUEEE (AL (2)) (31,320) -
(60,084) 51,182

Notes: HiaE -

(1) Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts of (1) REE-Z——F+t-A=+—HLLFE REZE
HK$10,167,000 was recognised upon the settlement of trade R 3 1 8] 10,167,000 78 7T B FAU RN 78 3T B R
receivables previously impaired during the year ended 31 BERERE SRR RER
December 2011.

(2)  Details of impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill and (2 HEEBREMEERRZBEEEFED BIRH

10.

intangible assets are disclosed in notes 19 and 20, respectively.

FINANCE COSTS

19K 20 B EE -

. BB

2012 2011
—E--F T ——%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

BB ZRITEER 7,344 10,739

Interests on bank borrowings wholly HARAFREH
repayable within five years B8 ZR1T
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

11. B THHERREENE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emolument paid or payable to each of the Directors and

chief executive’s were as follows:

ESRTHARNE
MEREERTRERC N REN ZME 0

™

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-E--H5+-A=+-ALFE

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Directors’  Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
fees  allowances Bonus  payments EREF  emoluments
ESHe  HMRER A URBEXR HE 5 “BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
(Note (1))
(#raz (1))
Executive Directors BTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying BT - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung TEREE - - - - - -
Mr Wong Hei, Simon TREE
(note (2)) (HE2) - 247 - - - 247
Mr Zhang Jianping RAE A
(note (3)) (Bi3(3) - 1,184 1,254 1,284 85 3,807
Ms Tang Rongrong ERRLt - 518 376 452 - 1,346
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard ~ BRiE& %4 - 1,300 375 452 60 2,187
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive Directors
Mr Dong Yunting EEEEE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Xie Linzhen HBRTE 156 - - - - 156
468 3,249 2,005 2,188 145 8,055
Notes: Brat -
(1)  Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31 December (1) #HEZZT—=-F+ +—HIFEZRIFE

()]

2012 was determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of Directors and the Group’s operating
results.

Mr Wong Hei, Simon resigned on 21 January 2013. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, Mr Wong Hei, Simon waived
emoluments of HK$339,000.

Mr Zhang Jianping is also the chief executive of the Company
and his remuneration disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as chief executive.

(2)

(3)

—A=
Bt RBHFMEEGLERES CRERAE
B E R EMETE -

FREEN_ZT—=F—A_t+—HEHE - &=
R HFt A=t —RALFE  EFBELEN
FIEY 339,000 7T 2 B ©

RBIFRETTARRBTIRAE - EXAEZ
& BEs R ETTEIRAEE AT IR IR 2 Bl & -
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

11. E%  THHESRESEME (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

ESRTHARME (&)

BE-Z— 5+ A=t—RI%E

Retirement
benefits
scheme
Salaries and Share-based  contributions Total
Directors’ fees  allowances Bonus  payments  R{KER  emoluments
EZE  HWRER T BBROER GBS Fali
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT FHT THT
(Note (1))
(HiaE(1)
Executive Directors HTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying X BT = - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung TEREE - - - - - -
Mr Wong Hei, Simon IELE - 581 - - = 581
Mr Zhang Jianping REITFLE - 1,162 1,815 1,421 74 4,472
Ms Tang Rongrong ERmzt = 508 242 553 3 1,306
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard ~ BRIZE& %4 - 1,300 - 540 60 1,900
Independent BIEHTES
non-executive Directors
Mr Dong Yunting (note (2)) EZREFRAE(Hi2(2) 91 - - - - 91
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEELE 156 = = = = 156
Mr Xie Linzhen i 156 = = = - 156
Mr Zhuang Xingfang EIhkE
(note (2)) (Hi2) 65 = - - - 65
468 3,551 2,057 2,514 137 8,727
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 11.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

EE  THESRESEME (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)
Notes:

(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31 December
2011 was determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of Directors and the Group’s operating
results.

(2) Mr Zhuang Xingfang resigned on 1 June 2011 and Mr Dong
Yunting was appointed as independent non-executive director
since 1 June 2011.

(3) There are no Directors waived any emolument in the year ended 31
December 2011.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2011: three)
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012, whose
emoluments are disclosed in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2011: two) individuals are as follows:

ESRTHARME (&)
Bt

(1) BE-T——F+-A=+—BIUFEZXRHE
BEACHFMEEeEEBRES2RARAE

@ EHRER-FE-—FRA-BRE MEE
BAEE =T A—BREEEABIHE
HITES -

) REE-ZT——F+ZA=+—BHUIFE HE
EEREEAME -

EEME
HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HLEFE A&
BERTMALBE=2(Z2E—F: =R)
B AR EXEE SR TWME(ZE
—F : MB) &K g MA LT ZBEInT

Salaries and allowances

Bonus

Share-based payments

Retirement benefits
scheme contributions

¥ KoERh

TE4L

LAREAD A 3%
RIREAIFT 2

2012 2011
—g-- —2——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
1,110 726
1,276 1,678

210 627

169 87

2,765 3,118
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. E - THRABREEMNE (B)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED) EEMS (E)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZESE T EE !
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 1,500,0007%8 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& T % 2,000,000 7T 1 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group REE  NEBWARAEFMESHAZ TS5
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals AL ERME - (EAFERFMARE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B sk S INARNE BB [ 8 S S 2 E AR
compensation for loss of office. T8 - SR EERE S M ZOBE AR E -
12. TAXATION 12. A
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ATIS R 7,102 5,014
LAT in the PRC AR £ S IR 2,100 -
Overprovision in PRC Enterprise BEFERBEPEMGHBEEE
Income Tax in prior years - (16,815)
Deferred tax credit (note 22) FERIBE & (K7 22) (7,710) (1,773)
Income tax charge (credit) for the year ZANFEEFTEH (e ) 2 H 1,492 (13,574)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for HRAARR B RENB AR ET BT EEL ER
both years as the Company and its subsidiaries have no A WESAREEEEESEN S
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. o
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12. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

12. #i1E (48)

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries registered as wholly foreign owned
enterprises are exempted from PRC income tax for the two
years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by
a b0% tax relief for the next three years. Shanghai Simcom is
classified as Key Production Enterprise and is entitled to use
an applicable tax rate of 10% for each of the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively. Two other wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, Shanghai Suncom
Logistics Limited (“Suncom Logistics”) and Max Vision
(Shanghai) Limited (“Shanghai Max Vision”) are entitled to
adopt a tax rate of 24% during the year ended 31 December
2011 because they were registered in the area of Shanghai
Wai Gao Qiao Free Trade Zone _E/&4NSiE{RFiE. Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”) and
Smartwireless Technology Limited are classified as New and
High Technology Enterprise and are entitled to adopt a tax
rate of 15% for both years. The tax charge provided has been
made after taking into account these tax incentives.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, Enterprise Income Tax rate of
the Group’s certain subsidiaries in the PRC increased from
15% to 25% progressively from 1 January 2008 onwards.
The relevant tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
ranged from 10% to 25% (2011: 10% to 25%).

Under the Provisional Regulations on LAT implemented upon
the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on 27
January 1995, all gains arising from transfer of real estate
property in the PRC effective from 1 January 1994 are subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including borrowings
costs and all property development expenditures.

BB B 2 FARAR KRR - R EER AN
REBECE L FRNE QAR A S EEREER
FTFREE - AIER BT BEI M EMGE - Hig
=FRIAREEFASHRERFEN - #E=F
——FRZE——FF+ZA=T—RALFES
F - PEFRBS TS [ EHEECE]
WHEZR10%KEARE - RBEE=ZT——
F+ZA=1+—HILFE  AAREMBARE
BB AR LEEETAETERAR ([ BB
) REHMET(LE)BRAR( LS
B ) ARE LEINSB R EEM - Bt
AR 24% R BT ETER - LERER
MBS TR ARAR ([ EEREARE])
b REAIS LRI AR AR A [ =il
| BEMEFEREZA15%MEAT
o HIERS BRI RZEMGESR -

BREBCREARKMBEADEAEEE) ([P
BEE]D) REEMSTOENERAR - =T
ENF—A—HBAEENE THENEQR
RSB H 15%REIEE25% - AEE S
BIffE AR MEEREREE S 10% £25% (=F
——F : 10% 2 25%) °

BER—NWNANAF—A-_+tBEMAGTRHE
TP ERAN LG ERE TG A
—NMNAEE—F— B RPEEREHEY
¥ELZATANRE AR HIEERS
(BNHEMEMBRERANFIN: (BEEE
PR R FE MEERERRS) AT T 30% = 60%
2 BHETR RGN £ IR ET o
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-A=+ALFE

12. TAXATION (coNTINUED)

12. #i1E (48)

The taxation charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled AEEFHERAS (Be) BiRa WEmRFARZ
to the loss before taxation per the consolidated income BRAEAIE BRI T -
statement as follows:
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before taxation MRESRTE R (95,407) (41,626)
Taxation at the PRC income il Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ’e TR ZE 25%
tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) FTE(ZZ——F : 25%) (23,852) (10,407)
Tax effect of expenses not TTTHTRZE%SEZ?R?T&%L
deductible for tax purpose 19,974 5,852
Tax effect of income not taxable AR L WA 2 T TS s 2
for tax purpose (9,615) (9,262)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERHIGEE Z RETE 28,675 31,658
Overprovision in respect of prior years @1t & E AR B & - (16,815)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRBAERERZHBEE
not recognised (3,103) (2,411)
Effect of tax exemptions granted FREMB AR Z RIS R
to PRC subsidiaries 2R (8,491) (9,629)
Income tax on concessionary rate RESHEFTE ZMEH (3,671) (2,560)
LAT IR ER 2,100 =
Income tax effect on LAT THIEET 2 TSR & (525) -
Taxation charge (credit) for the year ~ AFEEFIBERS (KE) 1,492 (13,574)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

13. XFEBE

Loss for the year is arrived at
after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Amortisation of land use rights
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in development costs

Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Costs of inventories recognised as expenses
(included in cost of sales)
Cost of properties sold (included in cost of sales)
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions
— Share-based payments

Less: Amount capitalised in development costs

AERBREMR GHA) :

-Gl

B AEHE
(FEASHER )

B DEA LR

Tt AR
nx  BERRENE
B DEA LR

(REAHERA)
RERXNFERE
(GEASHERA)

HEMERA GEAHERAK)

BIRA :
ESWE (M 11)
Hin8 THA

—~ TR REMEF
— RINEAIFT B
— AR

B DEA LR

2012 2011
—%--f e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FAT,
2,000 2,000
236,922 187,379
(931) (1,421)
235,991 185,958
2,906 2,085
86,021 51,769
(2,872) (3,560)
83,149 48,209
11,450 31,725
2,482,083 3,038,696
118,288 =
8,055 8,727
338,768 372,659
63,861 71,298
4,812 7,682
415,496 460,366
(130,265) (147,952)
285,231 312,414
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Dividends recognised as distribution RERERED RS
during the year:
2010 Final dividend, paid BN ZZE—ZFREAKE
— HK3.0 cents per share — &A% 3.0 - 51,733
2011 interim dividend, paid BENZZE——FHHEKE
— HK1.0 cent per share — =A% 1.0 - 17,048
- 68,781

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the =+—HItEEZREKE  IIEZIRNE,
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for EF-E——F+-A=+—HILEEZRARK
the year ended 31 December 2011. B o

o

EERLTRBEARE-F——F+=7

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE

AREHEEABESRERREEEBIIZIA
TEIEAE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

2012 2011
—F--F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Loss &5
Loss for the purposes of basic and STEERERREEEIE
diluted loss per share (loss for the 2B (REEARARE
year attributable to the owners BAEGEE)
of the Company) (96,671) (25,478)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-F—F1-A=t+—AILFE
15. LOSS PER SHARE (conTINUED) 15. SR EE (&)
'000 ‘000
TR Tz
(restated)
(&%)
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of STEERENEE
ordinary shares for the purpose 2T B IIRE I8
of basic loss per share 1,994,849 1,853,306
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended FTEEE R R ——F+=A
31 December 2012 and 2011 does not assume the exercise == EIJtEV M EREE BB RRZRITE
of the Company’s share options as it would reduce loss per RAEIRERE - BAEGH O SIREE
share.
The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares adopted in BE_T——FK-_ZFT——F+-_A=+—H
the calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the IEFE - T ESRERNREEHBEMERA E
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 have been adjusted Lﬂﬁbﬂﬁéii’i%lﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%é AR R AR IR AT A
to reflect the bonus impact of the Rights Issue. e
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME
HK$'000
FAT
FAIR VALUE N
At 1 January 2011 m:?*fifﬂfa 243,832
Increase in fair value IR Bl AN L =B I
recognised in profit or loss 17,702
Exchange differences i = 11,489
At 31 December 2011 I **EWL:H =+—H 273,023
Increase in fair value RIEETER 2 A EE
recognised in profit or loss 13,921
Exchange differences PE 4,631
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_A=+—H

291,575
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNnTINUED)

16. REW= ()

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2012 and 2011 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group. The valuation was arrived at
by reference to the discounted cash flow projections based
on estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions, using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$49,975,000 (2011: HK$39,114,000) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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AEBUNTEZREMETIRED BEOR
5o

NEBREMER -_T——FR_T——F
T A=+ BNRATFERIREAEEERE
B G BB L EMEE T E ETEER
BRATINFEBETHEEES - HEHZE
ERARRSREMA] bt mELAITERE
emETRAER - WERBHEMKIUARE
BREEENRESRE  MzERIAREA
BERERETHARERIER TSR RAEN
RS WARRREE - FTfE AR E RIS
BN SRS A LR BT EE A B BIRE
o

AEBRMEARLERENARELERDNE S
HERIREMENOYE - REARFERAG
ERNBERARIBIEYE -

R-B——F+-A=+—0 KX&EEZKE
YR A FELE49,975,0008 T (=2 ——
£ :39,114,00087L) B FHEM - (EAAEE
S —MIRTTRVE 2 HEIR -



17. PROPERTY,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS B HRFRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BERRE

COST

At 1 January 2011
Exchange differences
Additions

Transfer

Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Exchange differences
Additions

Transfer

Disposals

At 31 December 2012

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2011
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2011
Exchange differences

Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2012

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

R&
R=E—%—-H-H
ExzE

AE

EEL

it

W_E——F
+-F=1-8

Exzg

AE

e

e

WZE-——F
tZA=+-R

ik
R=Z——5—-A—H
EXZE
REEE

T SRS

W_E——%&
+-F=1-8
ExzR
REEHE
NIk af

WZB——F
tZA=t-H

REE
i
+=A=t+-AR

RZZ—4%
t=A=t-A

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant
Construction improvements fixtures and Motor
in progress Buildings HEWE  REHH machinery vehicles Total
ERIE BT £33 REE HEREE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT THT THL TEL TAT TR
37,218 192,901 4671 200,907 99,315 8,057 543,069
1,709 8858 206 9,200 4561 345 24,879
201,357 - - 24,596 148,749 3,079 377,181
(173,261) 173,261 - - - - -
- - = (340) (24) (439) (803)
67,023 375,020 4877 234,363 252,601 11,042 944,926
1,090 6,098 77 3,803 4,107 170 15,345
49,637 - - 23,608 18,641 - 91,886
(117,750) 117,750 - - - - -
- - - (3419) (244) = (3,663)
- 498 868 4,954 258,355 275,105 11,212 1,048 494
- 28 901 4,056 140,434 21,329 4,960 199,680
- 1,530 187 6,859 1,156 208 9,940
- 12,302 244 27,863 10,085 1,275 51,769
- - = (340) (22) (372) (734)
- 42733 4,487 174,816 32,548 6,071 260,655
- 1,003 74 2,893 1,273 108 5,351
- 2371 225 32,89 29,195 1,334 86,021
= = = (3,138) (216) = (3,354)
- 66,107 4,786 207,467 62,800 7513 348,673
- 432,761 168 50,888 212,305 3,699 699,821
67,023 332,287 390 59,547 220,053 4971 684,271
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

ESES

17.

T —FF+-A=1T—HILEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

17. M3 - BERHRE (F&)

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are depreciated on its cost less their residual values
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 1B
Leasehold improvements THEMZEELE

W

§

=i BRIMREKE
RS K2R

Motor vehicles B

Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Plant and machinery

The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and
located on land use rights under medium-term leases. The
construction in progress as at 31 December 2011 mainly
represented buildings under construction which are situated
in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$34,325,000
(2011: HK$74,428,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Details of impairment assessment are disclosed in note 21.
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A 2 AT R 3 A B LAk BT A S
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=+—B  ERIRIBECKERERT
B -

RZTE——F+-_A=+—H AEEZK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS M HRFTIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of

50 years.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged land
use rights having a carrying value of approximately
HK$17,261,000 (2011: HK$15,819,000) to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group.

Details of impairment assessment are disclosed in note 21.

18. LAND USE RIGHTS 18. LT ihfF FAHE
HK$'000
T
COST Jo %N
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—H—H 101,857
Exchange differences xR 4,677
At 31 December 2011 R-_ZE—F+-_HA=+—H 106,534
Exchange differences fERZER 1,733
At 31 December 2012 R-EBE——F+-_A=+—H 108,267
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—HF—H 5,749
Charge for the year INFEHE 2,085
Exchange differences EXRER 299
At 31 December 2011 RZF—FF+=A=+—H 8,133
Charge for the year IR 2,906
Exchange differences ExER 173
At 31 December 2012 R—ZE——F+—_A=+—H 11,212
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2012 R-BE——F+-_A=+—H 97,055
At 31 December 2011 RZF—F+=ZA=+—H 98,401

ARE AP B 2 43t ik FR A T AR IR R AR 40 %5
B WIRS0FHAFHHH

R-ZE——F+-_A=1+—H A58+
o R ER BRI E 45 17,261,000/ 8T (==
——4& : 15,819,000/ ) B FHEIF - {EAK
SEES—RIBTREZER -

BB RS 2 BRI 21 R HEE
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

19. GOODWILL 19. &
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 1 January 2011 and RNZZE——F—H—H
31 December 2011 E—E——F+-_HA=1+—H 28,321
Impairment recognised RIBEETER 2 A
in profit or loss

At 31 December 2012 RZB——F+=-_A=+—H

Details of impairment assessment are disclosed in note 21. BERT 2 BRI RE 21 R4k EE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-T—F1-A=+—HIFE
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 0. BLEE
Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
FARE BB AR EERI EFEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL T T
COST BRAR
At 1 January 2011 R-F——%—H—H 93,719 564,087 71,339 27,514 756,659
Additions HE 3,031 182,692 - - 185,723
Exchange differences Exz® 2,889 25,815 - - 28,704
Write-off Hhiss - (385,294) = - (385,294)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%+-A=+—H 99,639 387,300 71,339 27,514 585,792
Additions NE 3,395 165,180 - - 168,575
Exchange differences ExER 1,148 8415 - - 9,563
At 31 December 2012 ——#+-A=1+—H 104,182 560,895 71,339 27,514 763,930
AMORTISATION He
At 1 January 2011 R-—E—%—H—H 70,877 468,187 30,971 9171 579,206
Charge for the year AEFHH 8,899 158,366 10,943 9171 187,379
Exchange differences ExzE 2,266 21,803 - - 24,069
Write-off Hiss - (385,294) = - (385,294)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—%+=-A=+—H 82,042 263,062 41914 18,342 405,360
Charge for the year $¢&ZT§&%§ 9,617 207,610 10,523 9,172 236,922
Exchange differences ExER 1,016 7,358 = = 8,374
Impairment recognised WERER 2 RE
in profit or loss 3,947 8,471 18,902 - 31,320
At 31 December 2012 ——F#+-A=1+—H 96,622 486,501 71,339 27,514 681,976
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2012 —E——f+-fA=1+—H 7,560 74,394 - - 81,954
At 31 December 2011 R=F—F+=A=+—H 17,597 124,238 29,425 9172 180,432

Development costs are internally generated. License fee,
technical know-how and customer contracts of the Group
were acquired from third parties.

PR ARES - AREOFFA]

8. %

BRMEEPEHTBEE= °
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fFor the year ended 31 December 2012

HE_Z——F+_A=1+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

20. BLEE (&)

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

period:

Licence fee
Development costs
Technical know-how
Customer contracts

1 -5 years

9 months — 2 years

5 -8 years
3 years

Details of impairment assessment are disclosed in note 21.

21. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,

LAND USE RIGHTS, GOODWILL AND

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BEREEFRTFHAER - EREENERE
22 AT HR RS g -

AR 1E54
FABER AN 9l = 24F
EvEEsT(i] 5E8HE
BEAH 3%

BRRERHEZFBRMTE21 K5 -

21. %X - BRERRE - THER
B BEREREEZRERNML

For the purpose of impairment testing, property, plant and
equipment, land use rights, goodwill and intangible assets
set out in notes 17, 18, 19 and 20 have been allocated to
the following CGUs respectively. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, land use rights, goodwill and
intangible assets as at 31 December 2012 allocated to these

units are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Goodwil
Intangible assets including:
- licence fee
- development costs
- technical know-how
— customer contracts

Total assets allocated to CGU
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UE B
HibERE

i
EAERR:
~HEE
PR
i
T

BARERSEREN
LEEEE

RERRmE - MisE17 « 18~ 19 K% 20 A&k
ZE - WE MRS TR mErE
HEEEDRDREZE TR EELESMN - R
T——F+-_A=+—H 2EBEEZZEHENC
YIE - R N RS - b R R E

BEWNT :
Sale of handsets Sale of Sale of wireless
and solutions display modules communication modules Total
HETRRBARE HERTER HERZENER @t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Zg-zf %% Z%-f %% ZB-°f T-F ZB-2f 5%
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén T Tén ThL Tén Fhn Tén ThL
312,534 449534 106,132 13659 278,628 93199 697,294 679328
48,432 74219 7,366 8,594 41,257 15,528 97,055 98401
- 28301 - - - - - 28321
6,493 15,559 - - 1,067 2,038 7,560 17,597
43,983 9177 - - 30,411 30,061 74,394 124238
- 29425 - - - - - 29425
- 9,172 - - - - - 9172
411,442 700467 113498 145189 351,363 14086 876,303 986,482
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21. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
LAND USE RIGHTS, GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

21. % - BRERRE - THER

£ BEREREEZRERMG

(&)

Management of the Group consider cash flow projections
which were prepared based on financial budgets covering
respective period of property, plant and equipment, land
use rights, goodwill and intangible assets as at 31 December
2012,

Sale of mobile handsets and solutions

As a result of significant loss incurred by sale of handsets
and solutions segment, management identified that the
goodwill and certain intangible assets (including licence fee
with carrying amount before impairment of HK$3,947,000,
development costs with carrying amount before impairment
of HK$8,471,000 and technical know-how with carrying
amount before impairment of HK$18,902,000) which were
acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries in previous years
have the same kind of techniques (i.e. 3G platform and 3G
smartphone platform) may be impaired when compared with
the self-developed techniques by the Group in recent years.
Management realised that the expected synergy and income
stream from the intangible assets acquired would not be as
significant as expected and thus management decided to
down-size the operations of these subsidiaries, which were
acquired in previous years, and laid off staffs progressively
in these subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2012. Thus, management considered these licence fee,
development costs and technical know-how, which acquired
through acquisition from subsidiaries, will have no future
benefits to the Group and management expectation of the
synergy effect would not be as significant as expected, thus
impairment losses on goodwill of HK$28,321,000, licence
fee of HK$3,947,000, development costs of HK$8,471,000
and technical know-how of HK$18,902,000 are recognised to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2012.

REBEEEEREE R SR TRERE
RIB—"F+_A=+—R2Z¥W% BEXR
&ffE - LHERE  BEREVEESRYA
ZEBTRE RS -

HEFHERERTR
HREEFEREBRE R PRI EANEE -
ERERR  BASELFBTRRZ I
L RIBAEE B UEHTE A RIEUS AR Bl
(BI3GFAERIGERFRIER) 2HEBRET
B EE(BIEFAEECRETREMZERE®
{E43,947,0007%87T) « FEK A CREDRERD
2 BREE A8,471,00078 7T) ~ A RM (Rt
Sk (B AT 2 BR E 1B 4 18,902,000 7T ) ) 7] 8¢
HRE - ERECRE  EEREFTKIEER
B E 2 R R AR AR I8 AR EE X
It - B ERE MR % S R 1 B U AR 2 B
BARIZEERE  WHREE-T——F+=
A=+T—HILFERAZSEHBEL - AL - &
BEREZEE BN B A REUS Z 77 Al &
5 FRKA KR E A BT A S B EE R
@ BARBEAEHEAZBRME @ AR
BHE_Z——F+-_A=t—HItFEziER
FORIMEE FURE - AENAREER
il #2257 R 1B &5 18 28,321,000 7% 7T ~ 3,947,000
BT~ 8,471,000t % 18,902,000 8 7T ©
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ESES

21.

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
LAND USE RIGHTS, GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

21. % - BRERRE - THER

F)%ﬁ&m%§EZHE E]

Sale of mobile handsets and solutions (conNTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group failed
to achieve the budgeted results of sale of handsets and
solutions. In view of this, management decided to restructure
the sale of handsets and solutions segment and assessed
the CGU for impairment. Management re-estimated the
cash flow projections of the CGU, taking into account the
actual performance in the current period as well as the future
prospects of the CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period
and a discount rate of 17.5% (2011: 16.83%). The cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% (2011: 3%) growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. As a result of the re-
estimation, the recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated
to be higher than the carrying amount (after impairment)
of the intangible assets and goodwill as discussed above
of the CGU and accordingly, no further impairment loss is
recognised on the property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and intangible assets allocated to the sale of handsets
and solutions CGU.

Sale of display modules

In view of the operating loss experienced by the Group in
the sale of display modules segment, the Directors of the
Company conducted an impairment review on the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$106,132,000 (2011: HK$136,595,000) and land use
rights of HK$7,366,000 (2011:HK$8,594,000) based on
value in use assessment, in order to assess their recoverable
amount. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
5-years period, growth rate of 3% (2011:3%) and discount
rate of 17.5% (2011: 16.83%). No impairment of the CGU is
necessary as the recoverable amount of the CGU is larger than
carrying amount of the CGU. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of the assumption would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.
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SHEFHRERS R (FE)
REE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HLEFE &
SEREEBRTEHZ FREMBATREEK
Eo gt BEERATEEABEEFHRERT
RO WHRSELBMETREN G - &
BEAEFIRGELBMAPE BERRRRL
KKATR%  ENEERSELS uzfﬁim
T8 - MEEAEMN 2 A WESREERER
FHEEZANERE ° ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁ
BAERERFH MBEHEEMSL2ES
TRIEE  R175%(ZE——4 :16.83%) 2
PRERFE - AFHBEBZEERNA3% (=ZF
——F 3%)ZBEEREEE c FHERE
TR EAARAT T3 2 R TE R RABRE T3 2 T
RESREEGE - AREFTE ReEES
Iz A ESEETEmR E XA ER & E
ke REEGIRRER) - Bt - WER
PREHEFRRBRAARECELBNZY
¥ MELRE  tHERENEREERR
E—DRERE -

SHERRER
ENHEBRERSBPHREEER K
AREERBEEABETG YEREEA
106,132,000 7T ( =& ——4 : 136,595,000
BIL) 2 W~ B Kk K% 7,366,000 T
(ZZ——4 8,594,000/ T) 2 £ ihfs A1
HITREERE  BUTERSZAIREESE -
R EFERREEEEERER T2
BEESEZRERTER 3% (ZFE——4
3%) 2 BERR175%(ZF——4F . 16.83%)
ZIEEREST - ARRESEEE N Z AIRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

21. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON 21. ¥ - BER®E - LHEH
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, - -BEREFEEZRERG
LAND USE RIGHTS, GOODWILL AND (#8)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (conTINUED)

Sale of wireless communication modules HEEGBHMER

This CGU recorded continuous profit in recent years and there AR SEEBMNOFRHERSEN - WER
is no indication of impairment. Thus, no further impairment EPR - ALt - WEHEBERSEESHET
assessment was conducted on this CGU. E— R ERE -

22. DEFERRED TAX 22. R IE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets IATARAFERBEFE  AAEEBER
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during FERCEHE(BE) EEREBES) -
the current and prior years.

Write-down

of

Development inventories

cost and trade Revaluation
capitalised receivables  of investment Intangible

2EARE  BEREK properties assets Total
HERA EBEZRIME BRENESH BVEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL TEL TEL T
At 1 January 2011 R=E——%—-HA—-H (9,555) 9,592 (30,325) (3,268) (33,556)
Exchange differences Exz2 (465) 400 (1,469) - (1,534)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (R E) st AER (1,756) 7,954 (4,425) - 1,773
At 31 December 2011 R-E—%+-A=+—H (11,776) 17,946 (36,219) (3,268) (33,317)
Exchange differences ExzR (193) 291 (635) - (537)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss STAIRRE) B 5,059 2863 (3,480) 3,268 7710
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+-A=1—H (6,910) 21,100 (40,334) = (26,144)
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T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

22. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

22. IEEHIE ()

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE BE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEE F

At 31 December 2012, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$294,641,000
(2011: HK$192,353,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$107,653,000 (2011:
HK$169,953,000) that will expire by 2017 (2011: 2016).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$673,089,000 (2011: HK$567,019,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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VAT To st 81 76 S 5 P E 2 IR IE B IR BRER 2
#r

2012 2011
—g-- —2——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FHT
21,100 17,946
(47,244) (51,263)
(26,144) (33,317)

R-B——FE+-_A=+—H B LMEL
MELEEREGEIN AEBEHBARERE
FB % I8 5 18 49294,641,0008 T ( — & — —
£ 192,353,000 7T ) A] f #5885 K 2K s A o
R Z S B A R AR A0 R A AT TR -+
WERREEHBEE - APAHEEBEENA
107,653,000/ L (=& — —4F : 169, 953 ,000
BILIBR _E—tF (= ——F =7
F)fEm o HMEEr SRS -

*ETJ%‘:P BIEMENE A NF—H—
B BLAR BT A A Fr RS A S IR AR B
Zﬁﬁgﬂliﬁ?ﬂﬁ o IREMEImMERANARB A !W
J& A ) R 51 F # i 2= %8 673,089,000 74 7T
—Z——4% : 567,019,000 7T ) {E BT
HEE - RERRNEE A EH 7S TR E
RO - DA RGZEE R AR A R AR

A FR[RE#E[E] o
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BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AHHERE

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale investments comprise: At H &% & BIE
Unlisted equity securities in the PRC 7 Bl 2 JE TR AN E 5 16,875 16,605
The above unlisted equity investments represent investments it IE ERAIRERFRIEE R F B
in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity B—EFAERBEITHIE LMRAES - BA
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less EEATEMAFTHNHEEBRK - NAFNESR
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the BREAFE ] EMEE - AR EEHR
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that R EREMETZ °
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.
24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2012 2011
= —F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials [ 153,336 340,632
Work in progress EEH 9,415 49,058
Finished goods LURN G 108,515 231,039
271,266 620,729
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BE—ZT—F+-_A=+—ALFE

25.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALES

25.

HERTNHEWR

26.

At 1 January 2011
Additions
Exchange differences

NE
ExZR

At 31 December 2011

Additions NE

Exchange differences xR

Transfer to properties held for sales EEFENEYE
At 31 December 2012 n=

The properties under development for sales of the Group are
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under
medium-term leases.

Included in the properties under development for sales
classified as current assets as at 31 December 2012 is an
amount of HK$107,423,000 (2011: HK$85,795,000) which
represents the carrying value of the properties expected to be
completed and sold after more than twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES

R=Z——%F—F—H

RZF——F+=ZA=+—H

EZ——#+=-A=+—H

26.

HK$’000
TR

110,441
89,775
6,556

206,772

145,998

2,701
(194,048)

161,423

AEBEERTAHEEW R P B R EERIZ
AR AR A TR AR T L -

R-B——F+—-A=+—0 2BEARHE
EZERPRHEEYFEBIE—%107,423,000
Bt (ZZ——4% 1 85,795,000/87T) 2 FIE
FAREAZEEBNRERAE T =—@AR
SRR M 2 W2 BREE -

FIEHEWE

The Group’s properties held for sales are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sales are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

7. Bt RB S MEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to handsets and solutions, display modules and wireless
communication modules is O — 90 days. A longer period
is granted to a few customers with whom the Group has a
good business relationship and which are in sound financial
condition. There is no credit given to sales of properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts, as well as notes
receivables presented based on the invoice dates at the end
of the reporting period, which approximated the revenue

recognition dates:

Trade receivable
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

Less: Accumulated allowances

Trade receivables

Notes receivables (note)
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
91 - 180 days

R 5 BRR
TE30K
31 60K
61Z90K
91E 180K
838 180K

o REH A

FE W E SRR

FENRIR (HTat)
FE30K
31E60K
61290k
91ZE 180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks

received from the customers.

HERFHIORES R - BRERREREA
BREMcERZ —REEHROENX - 2
HEANEEE R EZBREERP IR RE
EPERBRRZIEEN  WERHEEWEG T

EEH -

AT RREFTBEHN RS MR (EERRAZ
BEIEE ) < FEYE 5 iR (F0BR R RRAEAS)
AN BN B 2 Bk AT -

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THIT
338,542 83,370
4,361 9,238
4,452 5,827
9,855 6,434
21,529 12,982
378,739 117,851
(12,640) (12,339)
366,099 105,512
62,606 609,155
2,140 3,783
2,525 6,599
4,231 11,984
71,502 631,521

Bat - BRERR B TP WERRITE L 2 AL RE
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ESES

27.

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

7. HtRB S MEE ()

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and
age analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor basis
and on management’s judgment including creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each client.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$13,283,000 (2011:
HK$7,539,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because they were either subsequently settled as at the date
of this report or there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 210 days (2011: 162 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

REMREMH LA - AEBEFGEERTPZ
EEEZREERPNEERE K TEPZ
EERESFRIMR - NEE D RAERRE
RHIEBR - REBRRREE R E U E AR
2 T W [B] A2 % B e 0 AT DA IR T ) ) B
(BEBERFP 2EEFRIBEERCE)M
H7E °

REBZ KRB SEREHRNESIEARES
13,283,0007%8 7t ( = Z — — 4F : 7,539,000/%5
TL) MR RRE B AR RHmMAS
B E LR EBEEREE BLEREERA
s AR EL R PIE B ELNGEE
REEWERZEERTATMEIRR - ZF
EWERER 2 FHERIR B210KR (T ——4F ¢
162K) o

SBHERBENEYRES R RR

0 - 30 days ZTE30RK
31 - 60 days 31 60K
61 — 90 days 61 90K
91 - 180 days 91 £ 180K
181 — 365 days 181 £365K
Total 5T
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2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
284 3,402

426 1,161

7,160 662
5,413 2,314
13,283 7,539
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27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

27.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

Htt RS S mEE (8)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH

Exchange differences EHER
Impairment losses recognised FrigER 2 R EEE
Impairment losses reversed BEE BRI
Amounts written off as uncollectible AT IE 2 S5 5K IR
Balance at end of the year FREER

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$4,178,000 (2011: HK$4,111,000) which have
either been placed under liquidation or in severe financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had pledged
notes receivables with a carrying value of approximately
HK$340,905,000 to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. There is no pledge on notes receivables as at 31
December 2012.

Trade receivables of HK$31,607,000 (2011: HK$36,395,000)
at 31 December 2012 and notes receivables of HK$41,604,000
as at 31 December 2011 are denominated in USD, which are
not denominated in the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be
settled within twelve months after the end of reporting period.
Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to third
parties.

REEREZ2D
2012 2011
=2-=F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT THAT
12,339 21,679
301 827
943 -
- (10,167
(943) -
12,640 12,339

REEBRETESRBENRENEKE SR
M E EHERFE4,178,0008 (=T — — F ¢
4,111,000/ 7T) » ZFRMHEBALERRE
R AREYBRE - REBEW AU ZE
RFFA E AR o

RZZE——F+ZA=+—0  xEEB A
AR B 4) 4 340,905,000 & TT B FE L R 1% - 1
REAEEES - RRITBENER - R=F
——F+-A=t+—H  UENERREED
2B -

R-ZT——F+=H=+—H# 31,607,000
BT (=T ——4 : 36,395,000/ 7T ) EUE
SEFUER-_ZE—F+-_A=+—HH
41,604,000 8 TTEW R B E LAETETE - ik
SEAEER RS BN s ERERHE o

HAb R AR EIRIR - 8 MR IREHR
BT_EARNEE REFB/AXINTE=S
ZESRE -
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27.

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

27.

Htt RS S mEE (8)

28.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT B HEE R
Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEFESIHT
purchasing inventories HER 2 ke

Deposits to subcontractors for TEEREL &
construction of properties MEZHTHE
held for sale EEMZIES

Prepayments SEUNE

Other receivables Hofth FE IR R

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

28.

AT REMEYIRR - He MIBENREZD
i

2012 2011
—E-—F T ——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
70,992 113,907
93,434 113,240
57,306 37,434
4,034 6,703
19,969 22,264
245,735 293,548

%?ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%&iﬁ

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and USD. The bank
balances receive variable interest at an average rate of 1.1%
(2011: 1.5%) per annum. Included in the bank balances
and cash and pledged bank deposits was an amount of
HK$319,200,000 (2011: HK$446,987,000) denominated in
RMB, which is not freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$34,991,000 (2011:
HK$171,890,000) as at 31 December 2012 were pledged
to secure the short-term general banking facilities granted
by banks. The bank deposits will mature on clearance of the
letter of credit.

At 31 December 2012, bank balances of HK$83,437,000
(2011: HK$224,525,000) are denominated in USD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities.
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REFZBRTEHBRESTEUARE BT
KRETTFHE « RITEBRIZFHIFRE1.1% (=
T——F : 1.5%) BUFEFIRET B o RITHEH
RBESUARBEFRITERAANBE—BUAR
B HE 2 $XIE 319,200,000 7T (— B ——4F :
446,987,000 7T) * xS HIB N HRERE
HibE# -

NEEE 2 $R1T1FK 34,991,000 T (=T ——
% :171,890,0008 L) R=E—=—F+=H
=+—BFRER - AESRITRE 2R~
MERTRE - ROGFERBERERAELEERE
/Hﬂ °

R-ZZE——FE+-A=+—0 ' UExT:tE
BRI T#ERR 583,437, 0008 T (- T ——4 :
224,525,00077T) © B RAFIELIEASE AT
ZEEMMEEEBEHE -
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29. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

9. RBIERMEE

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade payables

Trade payables (other than for the construction of properties
held for sale) principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The normal credit period taken for trade
purchases is 30-90 days.

Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of
the reporting period presented based on the invoice date is as
follows:

0 - 30 days TE30K
31 - 60 days 31 260Kk
61 — 90 days 61 290K
Over 90 days B8990 K

As at 31 December 2012, included in the trade payables,
HK$123,183,000 (2011: HK$285,273,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

RNEZEREFE - HEMERR  E%iR
EREFFIRIERRESAG I RENTA
VAR FEE R o

BN E SRR

BB SRR (TRERRSELEWE) 2
BREAEEZEDIRERA - BHRBE 2 —R
=EHA30E90H °

FEFHE R EY R 2 BN E R KB FUR
BREEZEKNAREMEBRB BB IS - A
FRARBAREAEZRBEREA ©

AT HRERBHARRERNRAEE 2 BANE
DR BRE DT

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
279,256 651,230
29,518 184,506
24,518 2,102
40,877 33,464
374,169 871,302

RZZ——F+-A=+—0 " EFNFBESEX
NEIEAEITAHME 2 538 123,183,000 8L (=
T——4 : 285273,000/87T) * BREAKEILIE
NEEQRS BN EBEHE -
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29. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

29.

REBEMEE (8

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits
received and accruals:

Deferred income (note) RIEWA (HiaE)
Payables on acquisition of property, IWEEMIZ ~ BB &
plant and equipment Rt 2 e 5RIE
Deposits received from customers HHEEWREF
for sales of goods WER 2 &
Deposits received from customers MIHEWHERFP
for sales of properties IWE 2 =%
Accruals FEETHRIR
Other payables H At TR FR
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HIRERESTR
Current liabilities mEBE
Non-current liabilities ERBBE

Note: As at 31 December 2012, other payables included deferred
income on government grants amounting to HK$58,008,000
(2011: HK$47,043,000). Government grants are given to support
the research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These subsidies are released to income to cover
actual expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$49,059,000 (2011: HK$39,741,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.
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HAEN RN - EWIRE R FERTROR
AT SEMENERR - EWIRE REFTHRIEZ
DT

2012 2011
—E-—F T ——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
58,008 47,043
31,513 35,916
124,839 182,518
39,370 =
15,223 13,715
25,610 48,135
294,563 327,327
245,504 287,586
49,059 39,741
294,563 327,327

B R=B——F+-A=+—R HEENEXRE
FERFIE B A ZIRFE A 58,008,000 7T (=
T ——%F 147,043,000/ 7T) - BIFIE B ATy
RARFFCEEFREBREIN 3 - URIEE
M B KR - RS EERE AR
TEEE 2 BRI AR EE < A HE &
EiEsG - BRBERBAZEERATBE—F
49,059,000 7T (=ZF ——% : 39,741,000 % 7T)
ZHE - REEAEECHES - FHAEZUR
TERBEEHRE T —EAANERFER -
MEFAIEREDAR
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29. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

9. RBERMEE (4)

Amounts due to shareholders on oversubscription on Rights
Issue

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
announced to issue rights shares through the Rights Issue
and 852,499,500 rights shares will be issued by the Company
upon the completion of the Rights Issue. At the date of
acceptance and payment for rights shares and application
and payment for excess rights shares, the Company received
3,254,945,280 rights shares applications in aggregate, which
is an oversubscription of 2,402,445,780 rights shares. The
Group received a total of approximately HK$650,989,000
in cash as subscription proceeds for the Rights Issue.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
issued 852,499,500 shares, amounting to approximately
HK$170,500,000, and refunded approximately
HK$480,489,000 in relation to oversubscribed rights shares
to the unsuccessful applicants.

As the rights shares are not yet issued as at 31 December
2012, the proceeds from Rights Issue from successful
applicants of HK$170,500,000 were credited to shareholders’
contribution and accumulated in equity. Expenses directly
attributable to the Rights Issue amounting approximately
HK$3,529,000 was debited to shareholders’ contribution and
accumulated in equity.

The proceeds of approximately HK$480,489,000 in relation to
oversubscribed rights shares was classified as “amounts due
to shareholders on oversubscription on Rights Issue” under
current liabilities and were refunded to the unsuccessful
applicants on 4 January 2013.

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
Amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

B EREENRRRE

REBEEZZE—=—F+-A=+—HLFE"
AR E MR ERBEITHRRGD  MAR
7] #5 P 1 I% 52 A BF 2% 17 852,499,500 % 4 iR
B0 o B MHEAR AR D RS AR SRIA & BB 5B
HOMERR DRI ABRRE R AARE
¥ 183,254,945 280 X % 15 2 R 75 BN &
B 5E 2 B 2,402,445, 780 % £ A% IR 15 o 7N &
EWERzERRBERSREALARESY
650,989,000/ 7T ° MR EHIARE A A E) %
77852,499,500 i f% 15 + %8474 170,500,000
VBT WL BEE R ALAR AR (D MR AT B 5

R[4 480,489,000/ 7T °

ARERBROR =T ——F+=—A=+—801
REEAT - BRI FEAREZ HARTERIE
170,500,000/ 7T B 5T A BR R tH B R A
REt o HREE B 2 F X 4)3,529,000% T
BRI B & P 0k R 25T o

REBRABHRREOZAMERELD
480,489,000/ 8 TE D BRRB EE T [HAE
ARBERMNECRFIE] - YER T —=F—
A BREREKINZEBFEA °

P — KB A R SRR AR SRR TR
BRARAREER 2R REEHKEER -
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ESES

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. RITEE

2012 2011

T —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Secured bank loans BIERRITER 50,767 511,472
At the end of the reporting period, the loans are denominated RIREHR » EFRAEILEHE © MUIEAER
in USD, which are not denominated in functional currency of NAEZBHNINEEETE - ZZETIRMMHEER

the respective group entities. The loans carry variable interest
rate, carrying at LIBOR plus a spread and are repayable
within one year. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the bank
borrowings were secured by investment properties, property,

FREE -

TRERBNEZE 2 FBFIRFE » WHER—
REER B - 109
17 ~ 18 - 27 R 28F# 5% - $R171

D R EE 16
EE AR E
Y - E - BB REE - DhERRE - Bl
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plant and equipment, land use rights, notes receivables and ZERIBITERIERBER -
bank deposits as disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18, 27 and 28
respectively.
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g
Number Share
of shares capital
RHEEE B
‘000 HK$’000
Fix T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEO0.]1 Btz TRk
Authorised: JATE
At 1 January 2011, R=ZE—F—H—H
31 December 2011 and —E——F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2012 E—E——F+-A=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: B 21T
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE—F—A—H 1,569,625 156,962
Exercise of share options 1T RE AR 20,694 2,070
Issue of shares upon listing of é/%f% REBE B

Taiwan Depositary Receipts RSP T

on the Taiwan Stock Exchange BITRRD (M1 1)

Corporation (note 1) 137,500 13,750
Repurchase of shares (note 2) BB (A7E2) (22,820) (2,282)
At 31 December 2011 and RZE—F+_A=+—H

31 December 2012 r—Z——F+—-_HA=+—H 1,704,999 170,500
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (coNnTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

31. BRA (M)

Notes:

(1)

On 18 April 2011, the Company issued 137,500,000 new shares
through Taiwan Depositary Receipts on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation at a price of HK$1.61 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
repurchased its own shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as follows:

Bt

(1)

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

BREE
Month of repurchase 0.1 BT
BEAf EEREAE
‘000
T
June 2011 —ZT—F<A 16,590
July 2011 —T——%+A 6,230
The repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of the repurchased shares. The premium payable
on repurchase of the shares of HK$16,335,000 was charged to
the share premium account. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled has been transferred from the
retained profits of the Company to the capital redemption reserve.
The repurchases of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 December 2011 were effected by the Directors, pursuant to the
mandate from shareholders, with a view to benefiting shareholders
as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings
per share of the Group.
The shares which were issued during the year ended 31 HE—

RZZ——FWA+NE  AREEREEFLFR
SETBEREETTRE - LWEKR1.61BITHER
%17 137,500,000 A& #TA% °

BE-_T——FT-_A=1T—HILFE AQA
FREBMER AR A REREA F G0
T:

Aggregate

Price per share consideration
SRER paid

Highest Lowest ExXft
RS BIE RELE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
0.86 0.75 13,195
0.90 0.84 5,422

December 2011 rank pari passu with each other in all
respects.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, 852,499,500
rights shares were issued upon the Rights Issue. For details
please refer to note 39.

EREORHERBLREE - MARANE T
B 7S 7R E AN ER A AE m AR £ 2 T ME - 8 A4 P2
52 16,335,000 7 7T 4 B B AR 0 (B BRFOFR o
HEFHEBROEERR 2 2BEAARRAZRE
mAEBEEARBEHE

BE—ZT——F+-A=+—HLFE BEAX
AERMD I AESREBREEELT  EHEER

RESKADIHERAEE SRANHELE
B -

T+ -_A=+—HILFEETZ

ZEB AR SIS EARRER

IR

HEHRR - BALAEETT T 852,499,500 A%

HARD - FBFSHMEES -
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32. RESERVES 32. f#E
HK$'000
FAT
Properties revaluation reserve YIE B LS
At 1 January 2011, 31 December RZZBE——F—A—H ZZ—FK
2011 and 2012 —E——_H+-_A=+—H 73,739
Translation reserve RE B
At 1 January 2011 R=ZF——F—H—H 168,937
Exchange differences arising on BMEE2Y | ERELANERER
translation to presentation currency 68,165
At 31 December 2011 R_BE—F+=-_A=+—H 237,102
Exchange differences arising on BMEEZ2Y|EREEERER
translation to presentation currency 18,473
At 31 December 2012 RZFB——F+=—A=+—H 255,575
33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 3. TSR
The Group as lessee REBESEBA

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$9,591,000 (2011: HK$6,406,000), in which
approximately HK$7,973,000 (2011: HK$2,299,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

AEBRPAESYEMBEECEHEI S 2 &
RSB A9,591,000 T (ZTE——4F :
6,406,000/87T) + E£H#)7,973,0008 7T (==Z
——%F : 2,299,000 7T) ERFAEM AR E AR
1t -

RI|ERR - AERERBETARELLEES
N2 RRSERSFRAE ZZMBENT

2012 2011

—E-CF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —FRN 3,056 4,804
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRAF(HEMEBREEAN) 514 2,968
3,570 7,772

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—T——F+-_A=+—HIFE
33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 3. REHEZTH (|
(CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor AEBERBHBEA

All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

AR AZMFEIARTAERR2EI0FH

2-10 years. &H -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted R EHR - AEBEBARE4 2 KA R&EMA
with tenants for the following future minimum lease SFIEMT ¢
payments:
2012 2011
—EB-—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F R 19,961 16,450
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFAF (BEEMFREEA) 33,544 42,251
After five years AFE 7,358 6,538
60,863 65,289
34. COMMITMENTS 34. &iE
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Expenditure contracted for but not BEELNBRINGE I RE
provided in the consolidated Bz <
financial statements in respect of:
— properties under development —BRPEEDE
for sale 61,251 30,163
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ESES

35.

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

35. RIKBHEE

The Group operates an MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to the consolidated income
statement, which was set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statement, represents contribution payable to the
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.
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AEEREARFIMEATESTEGO AEMES
BREER Y —EAESE - TERBBHAR
SEESHAMARESTE - fiFIREEE
RESHME—ADLIEL - WRERE S E
Z B IE T R EAR A e R 0Bk - 8T8
SEEIZEERASENEMEEDFEE
H—BMYER s ESFE - ERRESTEIHE
HE AEEEIERFIEEEEEREEA
B-RZE—ZFR=ZT—F+ZA=1+—
B - WS 2 A FR AT B EHR AN S B R 3R
FE AR

AEERPEZHBRRERTEZERR
A 28 -REKEERAEWRFEERRK
BAEE - B ARAR T EKANIEER D
Lot R AR MET B SR - AERBFLR KGR
a2 E—BERIERIEEHR -

RAFE » ARE A E HRAERNFE K
IR ZAA - BN S IR 13
RERREBERIFF SR AIRIEE L R A8
2 R EEE
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

36. BRETE

The Company had two share option schemes, including
pre-initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Options”) and post-initial public offering share options
scheme (the “Post-IPO Options”). Both Pre-IPO Options and
Post-IPO Options were adopted on 30 May 2005. The major
terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out below:

(A) Pre-IPO Options

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included Directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, senior management
and other employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the
Pre-IPO Options shall not exceed 44,000,000
shares.

Any cancellation of options granted but not
exercised must be approved by the board of
Directors. Any options cancelled cannot be
regranted.

Subject to the vesting period set out in page
156 of this report and the terms of the Pre-IPO
Options, an option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant.

ARBEMRBERESE - BEERAREER
BT B (B R AR ERBEE S ) KA
RARFIEERBBRIES ([ BRAFHEERBR

REEHED) ©

BRAFEERBRET IR ERA

FEERBIETEMN _FTRFAA=1H
R - FIRGT 8l TR RSB T

(R) BERAMBENBRETE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

MRS EETRINE -

i}

HEQEARRAIEMBRRE
- RREREERAER L HiE

o

m 4 \p

\
.

BRARBERBRETE TR
ZBEBIEFTS R RO BRES
A #848 44,000,000 % °

R B R BB RITHR 2 B
AREZERE o EMEEHEBK
BTAIEEHRL -

RIRANRE S 156 B FTst 2 B8 A
SE=WNINGE: =TI g IA TS
o ARATREL BSR4
HAFRIRE RS T T{E RE AR AE -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

36. BRERE (R)

(B)

162

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

No consideration is required to be paid by the
grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option is 60% of the offer
price in the Company’s initial public offering on
21 June 2005.

The life of the Pre-IPO Options shall be valid
and effective from 30 May 2005 to 14 June
2005, after which time no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Options
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

Post-1PO Options

(i)

(ii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive director and such other persons as the
board of Directors may consider appropriate.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012

(vi) AERABERER ZBEESAE
Al RAE e

(vii) BREZTEEREARANZZE
AFENA+— Eigﬂ'éf/\_'&ﬁ'ﬂg
ENERFEEEBZ60% o

(viii) BRARBERBRET S ZFH
H-ZETRFAA=THE_ZZE
RERNA+TMAMEE R AR -
LR & B — PR E
KB R AR E AT RB AT &1 2 15
REMAREMTEDETRBO R
AE o

(B) HERAMBERBRETE

(i) BWERZEERHEHE -
(iy Z2EEBFBEEAEERNTES "

AREEZSRER R EIEMA
4
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
WE-F-—F+-A=+—ALFE

36. BRERE (R)

(iii)

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the
Post-IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at 12 December 2008 and in
any event the total maximum number of shares
which might be issued or issuable upon exercise
of all outstanding options should not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the Post-IPO Options will be effective
until 29 May 2015, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the Post-
IPO Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

(iii)

(vi)

R-ZEZNFE+-A+=-H ' &R
AIREAB—TE A E T E AR
BERBRETEZ10% — K& E
PR o RIRE X AR SR ERET
A PR EMEBRERS R &R
BHBE @ MEBER=_ZZ/\F
+=A+=ABETRH Z210% -
i BT M AR T2 B A AE T
BT AIBITZ R R DB E
R AR NS RBB A A RIE R R
BEITRAZ 30% ©

PR 2 M ANIR H B IR
TAZEAAEL - ARABER
BEZBRESNRE -

RERAE 2 TEENAER/N T 2 &
=

o REHAMKROZKTHE :

e EERHBHANAERSH
Btz M HE - &

s RipZEME-

BRAFBEERBIRET S 28
HEE-_ZT—ARFAA-ThBALL
—HAW  HBTeERLER
¥ BEXARBERERETE
ZAESEFT B Efb s B A+ B
NI ERK o
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

36. BRERE (#)

The following table disclose details of the options under
Pre-IPO Options, Post-IPO Options held by the grantee and
movements in such holdings:

TREBRRRABES
rE

R

R

2RSS B -

3 & Bl I AR AT
B ERERETEFA 2 BRE

Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding
Exercise dt  Bxercised  Forfeited dt  Bxercised  Forfeited at
Category of price 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
participants Name of scheme Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2011 theyear  the year 2012 theyear  theyear 2012
H-g--% HZ§-ZF Hg-Z%
gk -F-8 -A-A tZRz1-A
SEEEH iHHEE ik fik4 TRE BAGR AEEGR AEERM  HAGR AEEGR AEERM  HAGE
(Note ) HKS (Notei) — (Noteii) (Notei) — (Notgii)
(Hit) A ki) (eti) (i) (i)
Directors
£
Lheng Jianping Pre-P0 Options 3052005 14.2006- 2952015 102 1,500,000 - - 1500000 - - 1500000
FHE YN i 5 ERA-AE
B RA=TR ZE-RFRACTAA
Post-P0 Options 2832008 15.4.2009-27.3.2018 081 800000 - - 800000 - - 800000
HRAREER ZBE\E ZEENERATEAR
UG AR ZE-NE=ACtHA
Post1P0 Options 39.2009 15.4.2010-29.2019 079 7500000 (300000) - 720000 - - 7200000
ERMRRER IENE CE-RERATERE
B E: ZZ-NENRCH
Tang Rongrong Post-P0 Options 2832008 154.2009-273.2018 081 800000 - - 800000 - - 800000
BB ENNREER ZENE ZEENGRATRRE
B SRCTAE CE-MESACHHA
Post1P0 Options 39.2009 154.2010-29.2019 0793000000 - - 3000000 - - 3000000
ERNRRER “3ENE ZE-ZEMATRRE
U EE E: ZB-NENAZH
Chan Tat Wing, Richard ~ Pre-IPO Options 3052005 1.4.2006-295.2015 102 500,000 - - 500000 - - 500000
Rk EROARRE “EERE ZELNEMR-AE
B RA=TA Z3-RERAZTAA
Post1P0 Options 2832008 15.4.2009-27.3.2018 081 1,600,000 - - 1600000 - - 1600000
YN “IE\E ZERNERATEAER
U SAZTAR 2B NE=AzttA
Post-P0 Options 39.2009 154.2010-29.2019 0793000000 - - 3000000 - - 3000000
ENMRRER I ZE-TERATRAR
VR MA=H Z2-NENAZH
18,700,000 (300,000) - 18400000 - - 18400000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T —F+-A=+—HIFE

36. BRI (|

Category of
participants Name of scheme Date of grant ~ Exercisable period
SRERH iTHER RHA k8
(Note )
()
Employees ofthe Group~ Pre-IPO Options 3052005 14.2006- 2952015
IEEEE ERARREN “I5RF ZELNEDA-RE
B A=t ZE-RFRACTAA
Post-P0 Options 125.2006 1.1.2007-11.5.2016
HRAREER RN ERtE-R-RE
B it I S5
Post1P0 Options 13.11.2007 142008-12.11.2017
YNGR IRk “TE)\ERA-AE
B T-At=A  ZE-tEt-AfcA
Post-P0 Options 2832008 154.2009-273.2018
HRNREER ZE)\E :f%hﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ
B SAZHAR ZE-\EZAzitA
Post1P0 Options 39.2009 154.2010-29.2019
ENORRER I “2-TEMATRRZR
U EE E: _é—nﬁnﬁ_a
Total
it
Exercisable at the end
of the year
REFAFAE
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS)
TR (AT)

Qutstanding

Exercise it
pice 1 January

per share 211
H-g--f

gk -B-8
fikE  HAMK

102 297250

367 5%7500

164 7238000

081 30,716,000

079 72331500

Exercised

Qutstanding
Forfeited at
during during 1 January during

Qutstanding
Forfeited at
during 31 December

Exercised

theyear  the year 2012 theyear  theyear 2012

W-%-ZE HoE-zE

-A-# tZRZ1-A

KEEMR REERYM  MAGR AEEGR AEERM  HAGE
(Noteii) — (Notzii) (Notei) — (Nofeiii)
(heti) (ki) (i) (ki)

(951,000) (298500 1,723,000 - (666,000) 1,057,000

- (1190000 4772500 - (L627500) 3,145,000

(940000 (20620000 5,092,000 - (7830000 4309000

(8:402000) (1,529,000 20,785,000 - (72130000 13572000

(10947,500)  (5,608500) 55,775,500 - (184755000 37,300,000

137,925,500 - (20,694500) (10,683,000) 106,548,000 - (28765000) 77,783,000
49,537,000 61,220,500
0973 0813 1.285 0972 A 0987 0967

Ol
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

36. BRERE (#)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

156

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre-
IPO Options, subject to the vesting period set out below and terms
of the Pre-IPO Options, an option may be exercised by the grantee
at any time during the period of 10 years commending on the date
of grant, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the
four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 951,000 Pre-IPO
options were exercised and 19,743,500 Post-IPO options were
exercised. The weighted average share price on exercise dates and
the weighted average share price immediately before exercise dates
are HK$1.548 per share. During the year ended 31 December
2012, no Pre-IPO options or Post-IPO options had been exercised.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 666,000 (2011:
298,500) options granted under the Pre-IPO Options and
28,099,000 (2011: 10,384,500) options granted under Post-IPO
Options were forfeited upon the resignation of employees.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012

Bt

(i)

(ii)

(i)

A ERER B R AR E AT B 2 ER B R
BZEABRAME  ETXARZEBHRER
REFAF BB ZETRRET - AEARRE
tH H AR 10 4F 518 O BE B 1T G B A - B AR
BN _EEREMA—BE_TTXF+_HA
=+ RLEHRER-_ZTLF-A—RE=
ENF+ A=+ HLE=ZABFSFHE 3%
25% °

BRI E R AR E RMRET BN - TT AT
BAT-AREBBREZSLREATE - @
—TTLF-A-AENNAEFSFRERE
25% 2 TIRHE -

BRBEERARBERBRET SN _ZTLF
T AT=REREREZSZEEAMNE © &
—ZT\FMA - HENEEFGF R
25% Z FERRAE

BRBEERRRBERBRETER _ZT)\F
ZA- T\ BERBREZSZARAMS @ @
“ZETNFMA+R HRNNEEFEF S ES
J& 25% 2 FERRHE -

BRBEERRARBERBRET SR _ZTNF
NAZRERBREZSZEARAME A=

—ZENATARENNEEFSFRERR
25% Z FERRAE

BE_Z——Fft_A=t—BLFE A
951,000 B R ARBEEBRER TR BF
19,743,50017 BR AR ERBEED TR ° 1
17158 B A 2 AN P 19 AR 8 K 24247468 A B AT 2 A
BTHRERER14BET - RBIZE-FT——
FHoA=1T—HLLEFE  HESRAREEH
BBRE BN AR B ERIBRIEEITE o

BE_ T+ A=+—HLFE BRE
BRAREE BRI 8% 1 2 666,000 (=
T——4 : 298,50010) EAHE - ZARBERR
&R B 8l H 2 28,099,000 (=&
——%F : 10,384,500 17 ) FE B AE A B B BHER
BRI
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

36.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

BRETE (8

37.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2012, an amount of
share option expense of approximately HK$7,000,000 (2011:
HK$10,196,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.

RELBHETRARERE 2 BREZ ATE
ZEBXH  WRASE 2 EREEEER
BRAE -HE2—_T——F+_A=+—HIF
g BRES H$584)7,000,0008 (=%
——4& :10,196,000/87T) B FHER » WEA
SE 2 BRI ETEREERE -

BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management other than the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 11 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits R HARE A
Post-employment benefits BER 218 T
Share-based payments LARR A 3% 4<F

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

The related party transactions described in this note do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FEEEAR 2R
WAFE - £ 11 TR EE S AN
TEREEASMEWT

2012 2011

- =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TR
5,254 5,608

145 137

2,188 2,514
7,587 8,259

EENTETBRABZMERTFHEZESRKE
BAEEKERE  EARAEZEERER
BETIZBERETE °

AR RERT A 2 BT R B T ER L AR RS
THABBR T ZHERXFRIFEFERS °
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ESES

38.

T —FF+-A=t—HILEFE

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

38.

HFERERS

39.

During the year 31 December 2012, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment amounting
to HK$11,680,000 (2011: HK$20,226,000) was paid by the
Group and included in deposits paid for property, plant and
equipment. There is no deposit paid for property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2012. Also, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$31,513,000 (2011: HK$35,916,000) remained unsettled
and included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals as at 31 December 2012.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

39.

R-EBE——F+_-_A=+—HEE K&
EEXNEEYE BELKIBEHORER
11,680,000/ 7t ( == — —4F : 20,226,000 /&
TT)  WEFAFYE  BERZEZN &
SRR -_T——F+-A=+—08  FERY
¥ BERRESZ(NES I BEWE -
5 R EARESF HA 31,513,000 (=
T ——4 : 359160008 7T) AEf - WEET
ABE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIENEME
BRI - BEWIES RIEFTRIER -

BEMRER

On 4 January 2013, the Company issued 852,499,500
shares upon completion of the Rights Issue. The proceeds
of approximately HK$480,489,000 received in year 2012
relating to the oversubscription shares were refunded to the
unsuccessful applicants on 4 January 2013.

On 31 January 2013, Shanghai Speedcomm Technology
Limited (“Shanghai Speedcomm”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, succeeded in its bid in the
tender to purchase the land use right of a piece of land
located in Taizhou City in the PRC at an aggregate price of
RMB109 million (equivalent to approximately HK$135.16
million). Following the successful bidding for the land use
right of the land, on 5 February 2013, the Group received
the confirmation letter dated 31 January 2013 signed by
Shanghai Speedcomm with Taizhou Land Bureau to confirm
the successful bid for the land and the consideration. The title
of the land had not yet been passed to Shanghai Speedcomm
at the date of this report. In the opinion of the Directors,
the land will be developed as residential properties for sale
and the land costs will then classified as properties under
development for sale.
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R-T—=F—HAMA ' NARRHERTKE
#17852,499,500 ik ik A - M =T ——F LA
#RREE AR () W ER 2 P 1S FRIE 4 480,489,000 7
TERZZ—=F—AMBRERKIZ RF
Ao

WZBE—=F—A=+—H8  KRA2EMNE
AR LEBERLBAAERMABRAR (T LESE
PRDEBREFRDTE  AAREHEARE
109,000,000 7t ( #8 & 7 49 135,160,000 7T )
BEPRRIMNT Lz T ERE - K
BS%tih e THERER  R_T—=F_
ARH  AKREREHR EBMEERMNTHE
+ERREEARA-T=F—A=1+—H
ZHER R AR ERINREZ LA XK
B - RAREBH stz ERRNARER
LBELE BEERA  ZLHHERF/EE
MFEETHE - MR AEEMOERER
FRHSHEYE -
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40. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 40. EBA QA BB R &K 2 &L
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
2012 2011
—EB-—fF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB R R 2 %E 124,098 194,098
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE IS Ff B8 A R 0B 965,150 998,828
1,089,248 1,192,926
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H e GRIE 661 807
Bank balances SRITAESR 651,127 841
651,788 1,648
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A )R8 106 =
Other payables and accruals E R BRI FE AT TR 7,347 5,535
Amounts due to shareholders on AR R RE R FE S AR SR SR IR
oversubscription of Rights Issue 480,489 -
487,942 5,535
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(BE)FE 163,846 (3,887)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 1,253,094 1,189,039
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital (see note 31) A& (RBIRE31) 170,500 170,500
Shareholders’ contribution R HE 166,971 =
Reserves EE 915,623 1,018,539
Total equity TES AR 1,253,094 1,189,039
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40. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

40. EBEA QTR R T2 EFR

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (&)
COMPANY (CcoNTINUED)
Capital Share Accumulated
redemption option profits
Share reserve reserve Special (losses)
premium Ex BiRE reserve Sy Total
RADEE BEfE i 5RIR (F8) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti5n Tisr THx THT T
(note)
(H:2)
At 1 January 2011 RZT—F—-H—-H 543914 - 25,144 193,848 81,585 844 491
Profit and total comprehensive REERFR
income for the year 2ENEER - - - - 34,872 34,872
Issue of new shares due to exercise AT R ER
of share options Bk 14,672 - - - - 14,672
Transfer upon exercise of share options ~ R{TEBEREME 7,792 - (7,792) - = =
Issue of shares upon listing of Taiwan SEETRE
Depository Receipts on the Taiwan EREEFR M
Stock Exchange Corporation EimETRA 207,132 - - - = 207,132
Transaction costs attributable to Bk 2
issue of new shares RPIA (7,708) = - - = (7,708)
Repurchase of shares Bk (16,335) 2282 - - (2,282) (16,335)
Recognition of equity settled PR ARGD X
share-hased payments 23 - - 10,196 - = 10,196
Dividends paid SRS - - - - (68,781) (68,781)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F
+-A=+-H 749,467 2,282 27,548 193,848 45,394 1,018,539
Loss and total comprehensive KEEEER
expense for the year FERY 8% - = = = (109916)  (109,916)
Transfer upon forfeiture of share options R B AR 1 2 ¢ - - (8,138) - 8138 =
Recognition of equity settled HERABR D1
share-based payments 3 - = 7,000 = = 7,000
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-—F
+-A=+-H 749,467 2,282 26,410 193,848 (56,384) 915,623
Note: Special reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation of Hiez - BRI EREERRARRNDNESHAERINE

the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

BHE=

T——E+—A=+—RAIFE

41. TBEMBA R ZFHE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

i), P

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HRRL/
RERE

SIM Technology Group (BVI) Limited 13 October 2004

Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited

RAETIXARAA

Shanghai Sunrise Simcom?
LERERNR’

Shanghai Simcom?
LEzRR?

Suncom Logistics!
R

BVI
“ZIRETATEA
EBRaES

17 December 1999
Samoa
—IANETZATER
REDHE

9 November 1993

The PRC
—hAZE+-ANA
ke

5 December 2002

The PRC
ZTECFTZARA
e

23 September 2003

The PRC
ZEEZENACTZA
lE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BETRAE
R/ EHER
2012

—E-CF

Ordinary shares 100%
US$12,233

LER1223%ET

Ordinary shares -
US$2,002
ERR2002ET

Registered and -
contributed capital
RMB200,000,000

HHREAER
AR 200,000,0007C

Registered and -
contributed captal
1S$5,000,000

H RESEA
5000000%7

Registered and -
contributed captal
US$400,000

AMRELER
400000% T

i

A=
NGl

F_FR-F—F+-A=FT-AR
ZHIBARFFBEET -

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company

B
2011
“F-F

100%

RATERAEE/SRER 2
Directly

Indirectly

2012
—E-CF

100%

100%

100%

100%

B
2011
3

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

TRRHRERA

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Manufacturing and sales of display
modules in the PRC
ERELEREERTESR

Design and development of handsets and
solutions and wireless communication
modules in the PRC

el e SR e e GES
REgmRER

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

RARERE M HEREEASE
Em Rt MRS
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. FEMEB A F 215 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital FARERATE/ SRER LA Principal activities
Name of subsidiary AL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly and place of operation
HEARER AHREE A/ RER E# Bt TEEBREEHE

2012 2011 2012 2011
82§ 3% Z$-2f F—f

Simcom International Holdings 2 Qctober 2003 Ordinary share US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BVI LER1ET RARR
ZEESETACA
EBRAKS
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BVI LER1ET RARR
ZZIME-AT=A
EBRAES
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative Services in
RANRARERAR Hong Kong LAR1#TL Hong Kong
“ZEIWENA=T-A REBR{ RS
&h
Shanghai Speedcomm! 16 November 2005 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
HERpE! The PRC contributed capital solutions and wireless communication
ZEE3RET-ARA RMB7,500,000 modules in the PRC
i i REAEA BN ER RRETRREANE
ARET 5000007 RESENRSE
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares HK$2 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
ARERAH Hong Kong LaEkoET RABR
“TE=FNATLA
5
Shanghai Max Vision* 8 December 2003 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
LakeE! The PRC contributed capital marketing of the Group's products and
“ZZ=E+-R)\H US$200,000 provides logistics services in the PRC
e AMRELER RPERE e HEREEARE
200000% 7 EmREt iR

162

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS B HRFRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—T —F+-_A=+HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. FEMEB A F 215 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital FARERATE/ SRER LA Principal activities
Name of subsidiary AL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly and place of operation
HEARER AHREE A/ RER E# Bt TEEBREEHE

2012 2011 2012 2011
82§ 3% Z$-2f F—f

Simcom Wireless 31 October 2006 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of wireless
JiGEGE 8 The PRC contributed capital comrmunication modules in the PRC
ZEEAETAST-A USS1000000 ERI SR RRE EREAER
] i REAEA
1,000,000% 7
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited" 2 August 2006 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights
R (E8) ARAA! The PRC contrbuted capta inthe PRC
“ETENAZA RMB40,000,000 B T A7 R AR
e AMRELER
AE¥40,000,0007C
Shanghai Simcom Electronic Limited! 21 November 2006 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
DENESFERAR! The PRC contributed capital marketing of the Group's products and
“ETNEH-FZt-H  US§200,000 provides logistics services in the PRC
i MR ELER RPERE e HEREEASE
200000%T EmR MR
Sino Team Investments Limited 3 January 2007 Ordinary share US$L - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Samoa LER1%T BERR
“ZEt5-R=R
FERE
Shanghai Basecom Limited" 18 April 2007 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
EERESRM( L) ARAF ThePRC contributed capital solutions and vireless communication
“EZHEMATI\A 15$200,000 modules in the PRC
i HMRELER ERERSRARAETRRBANR
20000057 RESETER
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

41. TEME AT 2#FFE (@)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital FARERATE/ SRER LA Principal activities
Name of subsidiary AL/ R ERTRAR Directly Indirectly and place of operation
WEAR AR RERS R/ ERER B ] IERBRERNE
2012 2011 2012 2011
Z3-ZF 3% ZB-ZfF F-F
Shenyang SIM Technology Limited® 25 October 2007 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights
RANER (R BRAR? The PRC contributed captal inthe PRC
STRLETACTREA USS10000000 R L ERE BEAR
] i REAEA
10,000,000%7
Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited! 8 November 2007 Registered and - = 60% 60%  Properties development in the PRC
RAEX(RR)BRAF! The PRC contributed capital EREENESR
ZEREET-ANA US$13,100,000
e AMRELER
13,100,000% 7
Shenyang SIM Simcom Technology - 24 July 2008 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets and
Limiteq® The PRC contributed capital solutions and wireless communication
EERAARANAERAR:  ZZBN\ECAZTEE  RMB30,000,000 modules in the PRC
i MR ELER BN ER RRETRREATE
AR 30,000,0007C RESEDER
Shenzhen Simcom Technology 28 August 2008 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Not yet commence business
Limited The PRC contrbuted capta R
MIGRENEER AR ZET\ENAZT/\R  RMB5,000000
i AR ELEA
ARE5,000,0007
Simcom Holdings HK Limited 22 September 2008 Ordinary share HKS1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
EAERERERAA Hong Kong ERR1ET RERR
“EE\EAACTZA
&
ShanghaiiLove Limited 27 February 2009 Registered and - = 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEIERESRMERRE  ThePRC contributed capital ALK
“ETNE-A-THA US$3,000,000
] HMRELER
3,000,000% T

164

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements RS B HRFRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

BHE=

T——E+—A=+—RHIFE

41. TEME AT 2#FFE (@)

Name of subsidiary

o). PG

Shanghai Xinkang Electronic
Technology Limited*
DESREFREARAR!

Shenyang SIM Simcom Trading
Limited*
EERAAARESERAR!

Goldsey Limited
BitARAR

Smartwireless Technology Limited?®

IREAEEHEARAR?

Shanghai Mobile Phone Public
Testing Platform Co., Ltd?

EEFHAHALRETA
BRAF?

Shenyang Chenda Precision Industry 15 November 2010

Co,, Ltd*
RERERRANRRAR!

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

registration registered capital

HRRL/ BETRER

RERS R/ ERER

5 January 2009 Registered and

The PRC contributed capital

“E30E-REA RMB20,000,000

e HRRELER
AR 20,000,0007C

5 June 2009 Registered and

The PRC contributed captal

“EENERARA RMB2,000,000

e AMRELER
AR 2,000,007

31 January 2008 Ordinary shares

Hong Kong HK$18,000,000

ZET\E-A=T-H Z#K18000000ET

&

13 February 2007 Registered and

The PRC contributed capital

ZERLEZAT=A RMB20,500,000

i MR ELER
AEE 20,500,007

21 December 2009 Registered and

The PRC contributed capital

“EENETZA=T-H  RMB20,000,000

GG MR ELER
AR 20,000,0007C

Registered and

The PRC contributed capital

“E-ZF+-AtEA RMB30,000,000

e BT
A% 30,000,000

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company

AATERAEE/AER 2

Directly Indirectly

B ]
2012 2011 2012 2011
ce-cf F—F 3§ Ff
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 60% 60%
- - 60% 60%
- - 87.5% 87.5%
- - 90% 90%

Principal activities
and place of operation

IERBRERME

Not yet commence business

HAER

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

RPERE e HEREEARE
EmREt MR

Investment holding

RERR

Design and development of handsets and
solutions in the PRC

R ERH RS RRBAT R

Design and development of handsets and
solutions in the PRC
KRBT RREFRRERAR

Manufacturing and sales of display
modules in the PRC
RPEEERFERTER
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. FEMEB A F 215 (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital

incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company

registration registered capital FARERATE/ SRER LA Principal activities
Name of subsidiary HRRL/ ERTRAR Directly Indirectly and place of operation
HEARER AHREE A/ RER E# Bt IEERREENY

2012 2011 2012 2011
82§ 3% Z$-2f F—f

Wuxi SIMCom 10T Limited* 17 January 2011 Registered and - - 100% ~ Not yet commence business
FEEMBENS () The PRC contrbuted capta kg
ARAF! ZE——-ATtA RMB5,000,000
Gilei MR ELER
AR¥5,000,0007C
Jiangsu Basecom 10T Limited 31 December 2012 Registered and - - 100% ~ Not yet commence business
ITHECBENEERAT  ThePRC contributed capital ke
ZZ-ZF+ZA=t—H  RMB30,000,000
GilET HMRELER
AR 30,000,0007C
! Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC. 1 ERBEFEMZ NGB ERE -
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC. 2 ERBEFEMZRINEERE -
3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC. 3 BHRENEREFRZINTBERE -
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC. ¢ FEREFz2RERE -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at £ A ] Bff B8 A BRI AN B AR S AN E AR
the end of the year or at any time during the year. B TR AR BTGB 5 o
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

WA

BR AT (R51R)
B (R%)ETA

AEREN (BR)

AT ALES :
KRAEFEAA
SRS

BERAE
REE
#afE

ARAEBA
felbiEs
ERTIG

Financial Summary MHRBEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=T-BLEFE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“ZETNF “ZETNEF —T-TF —T——F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL THI THERT
2,988,617 2,983,532 4,043,031 3,334,099 2,925,316
171,937 148,622 266,804 (41,626) (95,407)
(28,120) (15,002) (29,180) 13,574 (1,492)
143,817 133,620 237,624 (28,052) (96,899)
143,817 128,975 233,349 (25,478) (96,671)
= 4,645 4275 (2,574) (228)
143,817 133,620 237,624 (28,052) (96,899)
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-H

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ZTN\E “ETNE —ZT-TF —2——F “E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FET FET TET
1,932,259 2,647,445 3,151,322 3,841,468 3,463,334
(596,368) (1,102,976) (1,332,232) (1,766,578) (1,291,461)
1,335,391 1,544,469 1,819,090 2,074,890 2,171,873
1,335,391 1,526,986 1,791,065 1,986,466 2,082,239
- 17,483 28,025 88,424 89,634
1,335,391 1,544,469 1,819,090 2,074,890 2,171,873
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Corporate Information AT ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr WONG Cho Tung

Mr ZHANG Jianping

Mr WONG Hei, Simon (Resigned on
21 January 2013)

Ms TANG Rongrong

Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard

Mr LIU Hong (Appointed on
1 March 2013)

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung

Mr XIE Linzhen

Mr DONG Yunting

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr XIE Linzhen

Mr DONG Yunting
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr XIE Linzhen

Mr DONG Yunting

Mr WONG Cho Tung
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms WONG Tik

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG
KONG LAWS

Leung & Lau
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Bank of Communications

Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank

168

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.sim.com

STOCK CODE

2000
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